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December 11, 2018

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council and
Citizens of Cottonwood Heights

Overview
It is our great pleasure to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
City of Cottonwood Heights (the City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Utah State law requires that all local governments publish, within six months of the close of each
fiscal year, the complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the CAFR of Cottonwood Heights for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of Cottonwood
Heights. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of Cottonwood Heights has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s
assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation
of Cottonwood Height’s financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Since the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, Cottonwood
Heights’ framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.

As management, we assert that to the best of our knowledge and belief this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material aspects. Larson & Company, PC, a firm of certified public
accountants, has audited Cottonwood Heights’ financial statements. The independent audit
involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statement, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
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management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of Cottonwood Heights

Cottonwood Heights was incorporated on January 14, 2005, out of the southeastern area of
unincorporated Salt Lake County. The current population is estimated at 33,996 residents in an
area encompassing 9.24 square miles. It is known as the City between the Canyons because it
is located at the foot of the Wasatch Mountain Range between Big Cottonwood and Little
Cottonwood canyons. These two canyons are home to Salt Lake Valley’s four major ski
resorts, Alta, Brighton, Solitude and Snowbird. Each of these ski resorts has an international
clientele and reputation.

The quality of life in Cottonwood Heights is very high with many cultural and recreational
activities available within the city or in near proximity. Cottonwood Heights highly values its
reputation as a well-maintained residential and business community. The preservation of
quality of life is of utmost importance to residents and business owners. The City is proud of
the stunning scenic background provided by the Wasatch Mountains, and residents place a high
value on the natural elements of this area that contains a wide variety of hillsides, streams,
natural open spaces and parks. The residents occupy a variety of residential dwellings in
harmony with thriving commercial areas.

As the gateway to the valley’s major ski resorts and with easy access to valley-wide
transportation systems, Cottonwood Heights welcomes many visitors. The City strives to
attract businesses that will serve the needs of the residents as well as promote the attractive
image and appearance of the community. These businesses support the general income and
prosperity of the City, strengthen existing business centers and complement the City’s location
as the gateway to the canyons.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 -2-
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Citizens voted to operate Cottonwood
Heights from its inception under the
“Council — Manager” form of
government. Under this form of
government the citizens elect a council
member from each of four districts and
a Mayor is elected at-large from the
entire city. The Mayor and Council
select a City Manager who acts as the
Chief Executive Officer of the City.
Policy making and legislative authority

are vested in the Mayor and Council,
execution and administration of policies and ordinances is the responsibility of the City Manager.
The Mayor and Council serve part time. The City Manager serves full time.

Local economy

Despite the relatively small size of the City, Cottonwood Heights has 3 million feet of premium
high-rise office space in the City. (See table below.) The City is home to corporate leaders such
as: Extra Space Storage, Instructure, MasterControl, RizePoint and SoFi. Cottonwood Heights

continues to attract quality companies looking for a supportive business environment, access to

the canyons and a high quality of service.

Cottonwood Heights has a notable amount of office space including three office parks catering to
business of all sizes. The Old Mill Corporate Center and Cottonwood Corporate office
complexes house all of the City’s Class A space and 53 percent of the total office space
available. Union Park has quality Class B office space and is 43 percent of the total office space
available, with Class C office space dispersed throughout the City along major transportation
corridors, including Fort Union Boulevard, 1300 East, Highland Drive and 2300 East.

As of June 30, 2018
Class A Class B Class C

Total SF 1,591,228 1,295,775 115,318
% of Total SF 53% 43% 4%
Average Building SF 132.602 75,222 28,830
Number of Properties 12 17 4
Average Vacancy 8.54% 11.92% 1.19%
Average Lease($/SF) $32.67 $23.81 $13.00
Source: City Community and Economic Development Department from CBRE SLC Research
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Long-term planning and major initiatives

Cottonwood Heights is largely built out and therefore much of the future development options
will occur in redevelopment areas along the Fort Union Boulevard corridor and areas of reuse,
such as the Wasatch Boulevard gravel pit, which will ultimately offer between 150 and 200 acres
for development.

Fort Union Boulevard is a focal point both figuratively and geographically for Cottonwood
Heights. It is the major east-west arterial going through the City. It features a mix of retail,
restaurants, service and professional offices and residential properties. Fort Union Boulevard
serves as a gateway to Big and Little Cottonwood canyons and area resort attractions. This
corridor has, since the inception of the City, been identified in the General Plan as a gateway to
the canyons and a future Utah Transit Authority transportation corridor.

The Wasatch Boulevard/Gravel Pit Area is important as the largest undeveloped property in
Cottonwood Heights. It is estimated that quarry operations will cease in approximately five to
ten years. Therefore, the City is actively involved with property owners to master plan the site
for the eventual development. The site presents notable opportunities to provide services and
amenities, as well as land use needs that are not being currently met in the City. This landmark
property and proposed study are not only vital to Cottonwood Heights but are regionally valuable
due to its critical location at the mouth of Big Cottonwood Canyon and proximity to world-class
skiing and other related facilities. Development opportunities on site could include full-service
hotels, high-density housing, destination retail and Class A office spaces.

Public Works. The Cottonwood
Heights Public Works Department
has been in operation for the past
three years. During that time,
successful development and
implementation has occurred with a
focus on providing high quality
public services to residents, local
businesses, and other city
departments and provide these
services in a prompt, courteous, safe,
efficient, and cost-effective manner.

The City has accomplished this through recruiting and hiring great employees by offering
competitive wages, updated equipment, and quality training to the staff. The staff is responsible
for the maintenance of the City rights-of -way which includes snow plowing, tree trimming,
street sweeping, storm drain maintenance, street repairs, construction, and engineering.

This past year approximately 1.8 million square feet of road surfacing has been completed with
more to come in the spring and summer of 2019. Maintaining these roads saves the City money
in the long term by delaying future road reconstruction projects. Some of the major roads
projects include 2700 East, 2300 East, Fort Union, 3500 East, and Greenfield. This summer,
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work will commence on many neighborhood streets as part of the 5-year maintenance plan
implementation. The Department of Public Works is committed to excellence in maintaining the
City’s roads and infrastructure.

Services Provided

As a local general-purpose government, Cottonwood Heights provides a full range of
municipal services including police and fire protection, construction and maintenance of streets
and other infrastructure, planning and zoning, community and economic development,
recreational and cultural activities, justice court and animal services. These services are funded
primarily from taxes paid by Cottonwood Heights’ residents.

Other City services are also covered by taxes and fees and are provided through contractual
arrangements with other entities to provide these services. These entities and the service(s)
they provide are listed below:

% The Cottonwood Heights Parks and Recreation Service Area was created in June,
1967, and is legally separate and distinct from the City. This special district is
contracted to provide City park maintenance and other City recreational services.

«  Salt Lake County Public Works provides roadway sign maintenance as well as street
light and traffic signal maintenance.

% The Unified Fire Authority (UFA) is a political subdivision organized under an

interlocal agreement in the State of Utah. It provides firefighting, rescue and

emergency medical services.

Salt Lake City Public Utilities provides repair and maintenance on City fire hydrants.

The City contracts with the law firm of Jones Waldo Holbrook & McDonough PC

for legal services. W. Shane Topham, attorney from the firm, functions as the City’s

sworn Attorney.

¢+ The City contracts with the engineering firm of Gilson Engineering, Inc. for
engineering services in connection with building and other real property development
and public works, with Brad Gilson serving as City Engineer.

% The City contracts with the engineering firm of Sunrise Engineering, Inc. for
building services in connection with building and other real property development,
with Jody Hilton serving as the City Building Official.

Municipal Type Services Not Provided by Cottonwood Heights

Some services typically provided by a municipality are provided through special service
districts or Salt Lake County, rather than directly supplied by Cottonwood Heights. These
services are provided directly to and paid by the citizens of Cottonwood Heights to these
entities. These entities are listed below:
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«  Salt Lake City Public Utilities Department provides water treatment and distribution.

« Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District provides water distribution services to
some areas of the City that are not served by Salt Lake City Public Utilities.

< Cottonwood Improvement District provides wastewater collection services to an area
that includes the entire City boundary.

% Wasatch Front Waste & Recycling District provides refuse removal services to all
areas of the City.

«  Cottonwood Heights Parks and Recreation Service Area. Property owners within

the boundaries of this service area pay a dedicated property tax to the Service Area to

support recreational facilities available for use by all Area residents, including

operating the popular Cottonwood Heights Recreation Center located at 7500 South

2700 East.

The Salt Lake County Library System provides one library within the Cottonwood

Heights boundaries.
< Valley Emergency Communications Center (VECC) provides emergency dispatch
services for both the Cottonwood Heights Police Department and Unified Fire Authority.

7
0.0

>

Financial information and policies

Cottonwood Heights’ financial statements reflect moderate growth and conservative budgeting
practices. During the year, the general fund balance increased from $3,603,813 to $3,738,117,
which is 18.36 percent of the budgeted revenues for the 2019 fiscal year. The increase in fund
balance was due to a variety of factors including: 1) Licensing and Permits revenues exceeded
budgeted by $193,731, 2) Other Charges and Services revenues exceeded budgeted by
$140,043, 3) wages and benefits expenditures below budget by $289,884.

As a City without significant new development, very little revenue growth is realized from
property taxes, but Sales tax revenues have increased with the economic growth of the State and
the City. A municipal energy sales and use tax, which was implemented Oct 1, 2015, brought in
$2,094,365 during the current fiscal year.

Expenditures over the last five years have increased from $14,986,573 to $18,046,040. Included
in the current year’s expenditures are $1,012,930 in debt service for the 2014 and 2016 sales tax
revenue bonds, which did not exist five years ago. These costs were offset to a degree by
eliminating the amount previously paid to lease office space. By department, over the last five
years expenditures increased $610,996 in general government, $872,385 in public safety,
$22,900 in public works, and $142,059 in community development.

In order to maintain proper management and control of taxpayer funds, Cottonwood Heights has
adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies. These policies cover areas such as operating
and capital budgeting, debt management, and accounting and financial reporting. Setting and
adhering to sound financial policies helped the City receive a strong AA- bond rating from
Standard and Poor’s. A complete list of these policies is included in our annually adopted
budget.
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Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awards
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to an entity for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for a fiscal year period. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government had to publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable program requirements.

This is the seventh year the City will complete and submit the CAFR to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The
award was presented for FY 2017 to David Muir, City Treasurer/Financial Reporting Manager,
recognizing him as being primarily responsible for preparing an award-winning CAFR. It is
valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR meets the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting requirements.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the accounting and
financial reporting expertise and dedicated service of David Muir, City Treasurer and Financial
Reporting Manager of the Finance Department. We appreciate Larson & Company, PC,
Certified Public Accountants, for the assistance and guidance they have given us. We also thank
the members of the City Council and the Mayor for their interest and support in planning and
conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

i S, S

Scott Jurges B Tim Tingey
Finance and Administrative City Manager
Services Director
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
Cottonwood Heights, Utah

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Cottonwood Heights (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. :

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. '

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Cottonwood Heights as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, the budgetary

comparison for the general and major special revenue funds thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Larson & Company Member of

765 North Main, Spanish Fork, Utah 84660 CPAM ER'CA

Main: (801) 798-3545 | Fax: (801) 798-3678 INTERNATIONAL
1 " AN Crowe Hoewath intemational

\\'\\W\'.L\I’\C().C()ln
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information related to pensions on pages 11-26 and 63-
66, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, and statistical section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — Capital Projects
Fund is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — Capital
Projects Fund is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 11, 2018, on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fssins (aspouy, FC

/
Larson & Company, PC

Spanish Fork, Utah
December 11,2018
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As management of Cottonwood Heights (the City), we offer readers this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. It is also
intended to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues. These include identifying
changes in the City’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year’s
challenges), identifying any material deviations from the approved budget, and identifying
individual fund issues or concerns. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with the City’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The City’s total governmental fund balance is $7,514,354, of which $6,588,127 of
this amount is unrestricted and may be appropriated for any future expenditure.
Governmental Funds are shown on page 30 and consist of the following balances as
shown below. (See page 20 for a complete discussion of fund balance analysis.)

o $3,738,118 fund balance in the General Fund ($3,721,041 is unrestricted).

o $1,972,790 fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund. Of this balance, $805,741
is restricted as bond proceeds in trust for debt service and public works facilities.
The balance of $1,063,640 is assigned to be used for capital projects.

o $618 fund balance in the Debt Service Fund is unrestricted.

o $1,802,828 fund balance in the Community Development Renewal Agency Fund
(CDRA) which is assigned to the specified redevelopment area. Most of these
funds were transferred to the CDRA by Salt Lake County Redevelopment Agency
for projects begun prior to the City incorporation, and which were located within
the City boundaries.

o In fiscal year 2018, the City’s total net position from governmental activities
decreased by $95,327 to $50,767,660. Total assets decreased by $462,458, net of
depreciation, and liabilities and deferred inflows decreased by $367,132 resulting in
the net position decrease of $95,327 from operations. See page 15 “City’s
Government-wide Financial Analysis” for more details.

o Total net position of $50,767,660 consists of the amounts below:

1. $43,717,022 in capital assets, such as streets, bridges, land, buildings and other
infrastructure, net of related debt and depreciation.

2. Unrestricted net position of $6,141,488. “Unrestricted net position” is that
portion not invested in capital assets and with no external restrictions. A portion
of the unrestricted net position will be used to fund future capital projects.

3. Restricted Bond Debt Service funds of $805,741 and Impact Fees of $103,410.

o The City continues its capital lease used to finance the public safety fleet. This
financing also provides for a guaranteed buy-back of the fleet by the vendor every
other year. The City has also added a Public Works fleet of vehicles through the use
of capital leases. See pages 16 and 24 for additional information about the City’s
capital vehicle lease program.

o The Public Works facility has been completed in fiscal year 2018. See pages 16 and
24 for additional information about the City’s 2016 sales tax revenue bonds that were
the financing mechanism for the Public Works facility.

o The General Fund balance increased by $134,304, or 3.7 percent of the prior year’s
fund balance. The Capital Projects Fund increased by $290,006 from last year’s
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ending balance. Funding for capital projects often are provided in a previous year’s
budget and become part of the beginning Capital Projects fund balance in the next
year.

o The City benefits from both operating grants and operating contributions, and capital
grants and capital contributions. As a total of the 2018 budget, these funds accounted
for 14.0 percent of total revenues. Operating grants totaling $1,480,356 are
comprised of the City’s portion of distributed gas tax revenues as well as other local
grants. Capital grants and contributions are typically associated with one-time
projects and totaled $1,410,309 in FY 2018. Included in those grants were
contributions of $1,306,899 by Salt Lake County, which administers funds as directed
by the state Legislature, for significant road projects in the county. The City expects
to receive an additional $2,000,000 in such grants in fiscal year 2019. A summary of
grant and contribution revenues received by the City are shown on the Statement of
Activities (see page 29).

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The City’s Police Department, now in its tenth year, responded to 19,041 calls for
service during the year with an average response time for priority-one calls of 4:10,
as compared to 4:36 the previous year. The department is comprised of 39.5 sworn
officers and 12.48 civilian staff.

o In addition to numerous street and sidewalk improvement projects, the City
completed 1,729,600 square feet of road improvement projects, including asphalt
overlays, chip seals and slurry seal treatments.

o The Community and Economic Development Department has been working hard
towards implementation of its recently completed master plans, including the Fort
Union Boulevard Master Plan and the Bicycle and Parks, Trails and Open Space
Master Plan. Subsequent to the adoption of these plans, the city has seen two rezones
along the Fort Union Boulevard corridor and additional reinvestment in the corridor
through the redevelopment of various underutilized properties. An access
management plan was also completed to pre-determine the potential future locations
of landscaped medians along the corridor. During the most recent restriping project
on the corridor, lines were painted to correspond to the location of potential future
medians. Additionally, bicycle lanes and facilities have been included in most of the
city’s recent road projects and new developments. A major project currently in
progress is the Wasatch Boulevard Master Plan, which is a comprehensive analysis of
Wasatch Boulevard and the surrounding area from the gravel pit to the mouth of
Little Cottonwood Canyon. Pending grant funding, the department is also looking
forward to beginning a comprehensive General Plan update in the next 1-2 years to
incorporate these various planning efforts into one updated and cohesive plan that
accurately reflects the community’s values and vision for the future.

o The City, in conjunction with Cottonwood Heights Parks and Recreation Service
Area, has continued to promote successful community events enjoyed by residents of
the city, including Butlerville Days, Easter Egg Hunt, Bark in the Park and Movies in
the Park.
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o During this fiscal year, the City produced “Annie”; the community’s eighth theater
production. Arts grant revenues and ticket sales paid the entirety of production costs,
thereby allowing the arts council funding to be used for other arts events such as
“Rocky Mountain Strings” concert, a Christmas concert with “Joshua Creek”, and Art
shows for drawing, painting and photography contests.

o The City continues to publish a monthly newsletter that is mailed to over 10,000
households in the city and businesses to improve communications with residents. In
addition, the City is working to refine its website to better facilitate interaction with
constituents, as well as foster better use of social media including Twitter and
Facebook.

. The Cottonwood Heights Business Association was formally started in 2015. It has
continued to offer a business development program, an economic development
banner and business outreach programs through networking events such as luncheons,
open houses, ribbon cuttings and business spotlights.

o The Community and Economic Development Department has created and continues
to offer business assistance by hosting training sessions for business owners in the
city and has been streamlining business licensing processes while creating
connections with new business owners.

o Cottonwood Heights maintains a very strong AA- bond rating from Standard &
Poor’s. This strong rating enabled the City to secure low interest rates on bonds
issued during the year to finance the completion of the public works facilities.

J The Utah Taxpayers Association ranks Utah’s largest 50 cities based on the amount
of citizen income is paid in municipal taxes. Cottonwood Heights ranked second
among cities that exact the least amount of municipal taxes from its residents, among
the 50 largest cities. The city has consistently scored well in these annual rankings.

o The City has been the recipient for eleven consecutive years of the Distinguished
Budget Presentation Award from the Government Finance Officers Association for
excellence in budgeting. This award is the highest form of recognition in
governmental budgeting.

o The Finance and Administration Department received the Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This is
the sixth consecutive year this award has been earned by the Finance Department.
This certificate is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and
financial reporting for completion of the comprehensive annual financial report. The
City has received this recognition each year it has compiled a CAFR and submitted it
for examination. The Finance and Administration Department also has been the
recipient of the Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial
Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This award is a prestigious
national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of
state and local government popular reports. This is the fourth year the City has

received this award.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Cottonwood Heights’ basic
financial statements which consist of four components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, 3) notes to the financial statements and 4) supplementary
information.

Government-wide financial statements (defined)
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of Cottonwood Heights’ finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

o The statement of net position presents information on all of Cottonwood Heights’
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of Cottonwood Heights is improving or deteriorating.
However, the reader also will need to consider other non-financial factors.

o The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position
changed during the fiscal year reported. All changes in net position are reported as
soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Cottonwood Heights that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). Cottonwood Heights currently has no business-

type activities.

Fund financial statements (defined)

A statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balance by fund is a grouping of
related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. Cottonwood Heights also uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of a
municipality are divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Cottonwood Heights currently has four major governmental funds (as determined by generally
accepted accounting principles), the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, CDRA Fund and the
Capital Projects Fund. Cottonwood Heights currently has no Proprietary or Fiduciary Funds.

o Governmental funds — These funds are used to account for the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Their fund statements focus on how money flows into and out of these funds and the
balances left at yearend that are available for future appropriation. The funds are
reported using a modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and other
financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. Governmental fund information
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helps users determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. The relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a
reconciliation included with the fund financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to an understanding of the information
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 40-63 of this report.

CITY’S GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of Cottonwood Heights, assets exceeded liabilities by $50,767,660
at the close of fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The following table provides a comparison of the
City’s net position year over year:

Cottonwood Heights

Net Position
As of June 30t
Governmental Activities
208 2007
Cumrent and other asssts 9 550 820 8,087 628
Capid asssis 65482103  66,9:8,815
Total aesste 750725923 75856443
Defered Pension ContibuSions 2565 058 2,247 ¥4
Total deferred outiow of resources 2505068 227%™
Totel assets and deferred cufows T7ed 981 78104 437
Cument and cther Babifites 4 237 020 4,439 891
Long-s2rm Babilifes outstanding 2093504 21522353
Total habilifes 62064 26352244
Deferred uncollecizd propery taxes 142 793 124 871
Defered propery fax revenus 389 580 439 445
Deferred pengion miows 1,179,903 324 552
Totdl defered infows of resources 1.712.25% 889 209
Met positon:

Met invesiment in capisl assets anriE 5256
Resticied 04,150 &2 883
|Unresincied 6,141,458 5457 588
Total net posion 507e7 000 50 Bo2 &7
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Assets

The largest portion of Cottonwood Heights’ net position, $43,717,022, reflects investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, roads and infrastructure assets) net of related debt (if any).
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of any related debt and depreciation, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay any debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate liabilities.

In addition to the net capital assets mentioned above, the City has restricted and unrestricted
assets. The restricted balance of $909,151 includes $805,741 restricted for the payment of bond
debt, along with unspent impact fee funds of $103,410 which reduces the City’s unrestricted net
position. The remaining balance is unrestricted net position totaling $6,141,488, which may be
used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations and objectives by fund type.

Liabilities

In fiscal years 2015 and 2016, the City issued Sales Tax Revenue bonds for the construction of
the City’s Municipal Center and for the property to operate the City’s new public works
facilities. The fiscal 2018 year-end principal balances on all sales tax bonds is $15,765,000 with
accrued interest of $333,775.

The City has capital leases for the purchase of vehicles for both public safety and public works
purposes with current principal balances totaling $3,662,235 as of June 30, 2018 with accrued
interest of $325,875. The principal balance of the public safety vehicles portion was $1,179,592.
Cottonwood Heights regularly deploys public safety vehicles with a two-year lease, which
includes a guaranteed buy-back with the original dealership. At the end of the two-year lease
purchase, the dealer repurchases the vehicles for a previously agreed amount, usually clearing
the remaining balance of the lease obligation in full.

The City entered into two capital leases for the public works equipment to be used for snow
removal, street repair, and infrastructure maintenance. The principal balance of these two leases
as of June 30, 2018, was $2,482,643. Upon the maturation of the lease, the City will own the
related public works equipment. The lease terms range from seven to 10 years.

Further details about the City’s long-term debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial
Statements, note 3F on page 54.

The City’s government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 28-29 of this report.
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Governmental activities analysis

As reported above, governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $95,327 resulting
in a total net position of $50,767,660. The table below provides a yearly comparative analysis of
revenues and summary departmental expenses for all governmental activities and the net change
in position. This information is the annual information presented in the Statement of Activities
in the basic financial statements.

Cottonwood Heights
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities

FY 2018 FY 2017
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services 1481423 1,315,528
Operating grants/contrib 1480 356 1,784 554
Capital grants/contrib 1.410,309 033,686

Total program revenues 4,372,089 4,033,768
General revenues:

Property taxes 7,352,766 7,198 254
Sales & hotel taxes 6,176,453 5855273
Municipal energy taxes 2,084 365 2,104 636
Franchise taxes 335910 338,833
Unrestricted invest earn 103,347 85570
Other — Gain (Loss) on surplus 3875 96,926
Other — Miscellaneous 151,394 420589

Total general revenues 16,218,111 16,100,131
Total revenues 20,590 199 20,133,849

Expenses:

General government 3,736,218 3,505,009
Public safety 9,910,192 9830415
Highways-public imprv 4907822 5,101,370
Comm & econ dev 1,177,023 1,136,010
Interest long-term debt 954 272 683616
Total expenses 20,685,526 20,256.419

Change in net position (95,327) (122,520)

Net position - beginning 50,862,987 50,985,507
Net position - ending 50,767 660 b0,862 987

As can be seen from the following pie chart, the majority of funding for City programs does not
come from program revenues but is made up from allocated general revenues such as Property
Tax and Sales Tax revenues. The graphic shows all revenue sources collected by the City during
the fiscal 2018 year.
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All Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Unrestricted Invest
Earnings
0.5%

Charges for
Services
7.2%

Miscellaneous

0.8% Operating Grants

7.2%

Capital Grants/
Contributions
6.8%

Sales Taxes
30.0%

MotorVehicles Prop
Tax
1.9%

Cable TV Taxes
1.6%

Energy Taxes

10.2% Property Taxes

33.8%

Current year revenue sources were from:

$7,352,766  Property Tax (including motor vehicle fee in lieu) revenues (35.7%)

$6,176,453  Sales and Transient Room Taxes (30.0%)

$2,094,365  Municipal Energy Use Taxes (10.2%)

$ 335,910 Cable TV Franchise tax (1.6%)

$1,480,356  Operational Grants (7.2%) (Class C road funds (87.2% of category), State
Liquor tax, and CDBG funds)

$1,481,423  Charges for Service (Licenses, Permits and Court fines) (7.2%)

$1,410,309  Capital Grants for major road projects, trail and park improvements,
additional impact fees and local grants (6.8%). This includes a grant that
was received from Salt Lake County from funds allocated by the state
Legislature for significant road projects. The majority of this grant was
used to help fund the rebuilding of major roads in the city. These types of
grants are specific and awarded based on the merit of the application
submitted. Because they are project specific, they have little effect on the
basic operational functions of the City.

$ 103,347 Investment interest earnings and miscellaneous (0.5%)

$ 155,269 Miscellaneous Revenues (0.8%)

The following is a graphic presentation of the City’s program revenues and corresponding
expenses, including calculated annual depreciation on capital assets. (Note: See Statement of
Activities on page 29 for detail data.)
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

(In Millions )
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General Government Public Safety Highways & Public Community Interest Paid

Improvements Development
Function / Program

B Expenses & Revenues

General Government — The General Government revenue is from charges for services (business
licensing and permits and inspections). Expenses are for general governmental operations and
overhead from various activities including Legislative, Judicial, Executive and Administrative.

Public Safety — Public Safety revenues $391,549 from the City’s share of court fines (revenue
from citations). Expenses are for Police, Fire, Animal Services and related public safety
functions. (Note: Related Court expenses are $386,351, netting only $5,198 in revenues, which
is equal to only 0.091 percent of the Police Department expenses.)

Highway and Public Improvements — The revenue for Highway and Public Improvements is
primarily from Class C Road Funds allocated to the City from the state assessed tax on gasoline
sales. Approximately 39.9 percent of the expenses shown for Highways and Public
Improvements is attributable to current period depreciation of the City’s infrastructure assets.
The balance is for road, sidewalk, storm drain and other infrastructure improvements as well as
construction of the Public Works facilities.

Community Development — Revenues come from additional charges for services related to
planning and zoning functions and expenses are also directly related to these services.

Interest Paid — $954,720 interest expense was incurred on outstanding debt.
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CITY’S FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, Cottonwood Heights uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements and to track and control financial resources
received and expended.

Governmental Funds Analysis

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government’s net resources available for appropriation at the end of the fiscal year.

Governmental fund balance is reported in three major categories resulting in five separate direct
categories: Non-spendable, Restricted, Unrestricted (which can be shown as Committed,
Assigned and Unassigned). Non-spendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent
for legal or practical reasons. Examples include long-term notes receivable, inventory and
prepaid expenditures. Restricted fund balance includes amounts restricted to specific purposes
by external parties such as amounts restricted for debt service. Committed fund balance includes
amounts that have been set aside by the City Council by formal action for a specific purpose
prior to the end of the fiscal year being reported. Assigned fund balance includes amounts that
have been set aside for intended use by designated officials, governmental body or City Council
without formal action. Unassigned fund balance includes all remaining amounts.

At the end of this fiscal year, Cottonwood Heights’ governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $7,514,354 after 14Y2 years of operation, an increase of $424,958 from
the prior year. The increase in fund balance compared to the prior year is attributable primarily
to wages and benefits expenditures were below budget by $289,884 and other charges and
services revenues exceeded budget by $140,043. Of the total fund balance of $7,514,354,
$17,077 is non-spendable and represents prepaid expenditures for fiscal year 2019 events,
$805,741 is restricted as Bond Debt Service Funds in Trust, $103,410 and the remaining
$6,588,127 is unrestricted funds, of which $483,105 is assigned to fund accrued and vested paid
time off, $1,063,640 is assigned as Capital Project funds and allocated to various specific
projects, $1,802,829 is assigned as CDRA funds, $618 in the Debt Service Fund and $3,237,936
is the remaining unassigned portion of the unrestricted balance in the General Fund.

e The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As of June 30, 2018, the
General Fund had a fund balance of $3,738,118, of which $17,077 is restricted for
prepaid expenditures and is non-spendable. Unrestricted fund balance totals $3,721,041
of which-$483,105 is assigned to fund accrued and vested paid time off and $3,237,936 is
classified as unassigned. A useful measure of liquidity is to compare the unrestricted
fund balance and the total fund balance to expenditures (including transfers out) for the
year. The unrestricted fund balance is 17.1 percent of total expenditures and transfers,
while the total fund balance equals 19.8 percent. The City ordinance chapter 2.150.11 as
adopted by the City Council requires a desired target minimum fund balance of 6.0
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percent of annual general fund revenues. State law requires a 5 percent minimum
balance for restricted use as defined by state statute. State law also requires appropriation
of any general fund balance in excess of the 25.0 percent maximum allowed. Currently,
the calculated 6.0 percent minimum fund balance is $1,187,001 and the remaining
unassigned balance is $2,050,935.

e Another governmental fund is the Capital Projects Fund. This fund is specifically used
to budget capital improvements. As of June 30, 2018, the fund balance was $1,972,790,
of which $805,741 is restricted for debt service related to the issuance of the 2014 and
2016 sales tax bonds and $103,410 is restricted for Impact Fees charged on development
projects. For specific details, see supplementary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — Capital Projects Fund on page 68.

e The Community Development Renewal Agency (CDRA) Fund has been established to
provide a funding mechanism to participate in developments with approved projects that
provide a needed public purpose. The current unrestricted fund balance of $1,802,829 is
the result of a contribution from Salt Lake County RDA funds collected within the
boundaries of Cottonwood Heights prior to the City’s incorporation. For specific details
see Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and
Actual — Community Development Renewal Agency on page 35.

The following pie chart further details Cottonwood Heights’ expenses at a detailed activity level.
This chart does not include annual depreciation on capital assets. (See Governmental Funds
statement on page 32 for expenses without depreciation.)

Fiscal Year 2018 - Expenditure by Type
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General Government — includes the activities of Legislative ($637,141), Judicial ($386,351),
Executive ($570,419) and Administrative ($1,802,807) functions.

Public Safety — includes the activities of Police ($5,726,792), Ordinance Enforcement
($170,147) and Fire ($3,511,277).

Highways and Public Improvements — includes the activities of Public Works ($2,395,875)
function which includes road maintenance, snow removal, signage and park maintenance.

Community and Economic Development — includes the activities of City Engineer ($541,916),
Economic Development ($55,199) and Planning ($515,016).

Capital Projects Fund — includes all Capital Improvement Projects ($2,045,604), including road
paving and repairs, finishing the Public Works yard and other purchases of equipment and right
of ways for future projects.

The City’s basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 28-35 of this
report.

GENERAL FUND 2018 BUDGET AMENDMENTS

Original budget compared to final budget

During the fiscal year, the general fund’s original budgeted expenditures increased by $108,726
from $17,166,747 to $17,275,473 as shown in the detail below. See also the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budgeted and Actual on page 34.

Several factors created the need to amend the budget. During the year the City decided to
transfer an additional $600,000 from the general fund to the capital projects fund.

Most budget amendments in general fund expenditures were made to match changes in internal
shifting in personnel and associated benefits. Budget changes in the Police department were due
to several supply and training needs that were partially covered by increased grant revenues.
Additionally, the Arts Council carried forward $13,307 in unspent funds from the previous year
and City events were increased $9,500 for City parade needs.

The changes in the fiscal year 2018 budget in individual departmental appropriations were
covered through a combination of using previously accrued resources (fund balance) or
identifying new revenues. The chart below outlines both revenue and expenditure changes made
during the fiscal year.
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Revenue and Other Sources of Funds were amended for the following:

Grants $32,000
Other Miscellaneous Revenues 10,524
Use of Fund Balance 166,202
Total change in budgeted Revenues and Other Sources of Funds $108,726

Expenditures and Other Uses of Funds were amended for the following:
General Government Department:

Legislative Committees and Events $ 23,107

City Manager 11,300

Finance (166,300)

Administrative Services 105,000
Public Safety:

Police 85,619
Community and Economic Development:

Economic Development (12.000)

Planning 58,500
Total Change in Departmental Budgets $108,726

Final budget compared to actual results

Overall, general fund revenues collected were $384,325 more than budgeted. The most
significant contributing revenues to this difference were in sales taxes and development services
permitting and plan check fees, in which collections were, respectively, $232,449, $192,051 and
$123,601 higher than budgeted.

Actual expenditures during this fiscal year in the General Fund departments were all less than the
amended budget appropriation in all departments. As noted above, the City’s Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — General Fund can
be found on page 34 of this report.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets
Cottonwood Heights’ investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30,

2018, amounted to $43,717,020 (net of related debt and depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land right-of-way, roads, bridges, parkways (improvements other than buildings),
storm drains, land (not road rights-of-way), buildings, equipment and vehicles, net of capital
leases.
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Cottonwood Heights’ Capital Assets
(Net of related debt)

Govemnmental Activities
FY 2018 FY 2017

Equipment § 9609709 § 835686
\ehicles 3,119,975 4 160,261
Buildings 13,589,909 13,364 308
Land (non-infrastructure) 9,262 154 9,262 154
Infrastructure - Roads 5,088,283 5,754 116
Infrastructure - Bridges 470,544 498 428
Infrastructure - Parkways 7,343,536 7,926,975
Infrastructure - Storm Drains 1,764,280 1,796,599
Infrastructure - Land 23,873,712 23,370,289
Total (net of depreciation) 65,482 102 66,968 815
Less Debt (net of funds in trust) (21,765,082) (22,426 300)

Total Capital Assets (net of related debt) $43.717,020 § 44542514

Capital asset additions during this fiscal year included the following for a total increase of
$2,054,005 (see note 3D — Capital Assets), which is net of $8,005 in disposal of Public Safety
vehicles:

$ 503,423 in land acquisition and non-depreciating land infrastructure

$ 623,377 ininfrastructure from road overlay and construction projects

$ 13,467 instorm drain repair and installations

$ 13,122 in parkway beautification and improvements including crosswalks,
cross-gutters, street lighting

$ 570,266 in buildings (development and construction of Public Works facilities)

$ 293,429 in new equipment

$ 44,926 invehicle police purchases

Additional information on assets of the City can be found in the Notes 3D Capital Assets on page
50 of this report.

Long-term debt

As of June 30, 2018, the City had $20,935,044 in governmental long-term debt. $3,662,235 of
the long-term debt is a capital lease to fund the purchase of department vehicles. A portion of
the vehicles have a fixed buy-back price after two years. Additionally, $15,765,000 of the
governmental long-term debt is related to Sales Tax Revenue Bonds issued to construct the
City’s Municipal Center and the Public Works facility, along with the unamortized bond
premium of $1,037,810. These bonds are payable over the next 22 years. The principal payment
of $400,000 was due in July 2017, along with $394,336 of interest. The second semi-annual
payment, $333,775 interest only, was due January 1, 2018.
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Additional information on the outstanding debt obligations of the City can be found in the Notes
3F Long-Term Debt on pages 51-53 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND TAX RATE

o Cottonwood Heights’ adopted tax rate for the 2018-19 budget year is .002088. This
is a 13.4 percent increase over the Certified Tax rate calculation defined by the state
Legislature. The locally assessed taxable valuation in Cottonwood Heights is
$3,667,234,098, including $61,118,764 of new growth in valuation. The adopted tax
rate should yield approximately $7,784,801 in 2018 property tax revenue for the
coming 2019 fiscal year.

o Sales tax collections in the State of Utah have strengthened and will help contribute
support to the City’s budget in fiscal year 2019. The original budgeted amount of
Sales taxes for fiscal year 2019 is $6,241,000. This compares to actual total sales tax
revenue of $6,138,449 in fiscal 2018. The City continues to budget sales taxes
conservatively as a hedge against any future reversals in the economy. Actual results
for the past 4 years have shown year over year increases of 3.45 percent to 5.70
percent. Initial results in the first few months for FY 2019 have shown a leveling of
these increases.

o At the time of preparing the fiscal year 2019 budget, Class C Road Funds were
believed to be stabilizing. The budget was set at $1,315,000, which is approximately
a 1.7 percent increase over the prior year actual.

o Increasing costs for materials and labor continue to put financial pressure on the City
budget. Natural revenue increases do not keep pace with increasing costs. This is
particularly true for infrastructure maintenance and repairs. It will be necessary in the
coming years to find additional sources of revenue to properly deliver services and
maintain infrastructure.

o Capital Project Funds are allocated to specific projects that may or may not be
expended in the fiscal year. Presently, $1,280,161 of local government grants
budgeted in FY 2018 from SB277 revenues will be re-budgeted in the current year.
$ 960,615 of prior budgeted FY 2018 projects tied to these grant funds will also be re-
budgeted. These two items result in $437,082 of unallocated grant funds which will
allow for additional projects to be contemplated. Additional grant revenues of
$161,385 have been identified for corridor preservation in FY 2019, which will also
allow for additional projects to be considered. Of the Capital Project Fund Balance as
of June 30, 2018, $691,180 represents prior allocations to capital projects that are not
being considered for carry forward re-allocation to the next fiscal year but may be
considered by the City Council in the 2019 fiscal year for additional project that may
arise during the year.

o The ending fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund from the fiscal year 2018 is
$1,972,790, inclusive of $805,741 of bond funds held in trust and $103,410 is
reserved impact fees collected in fiscal year 2018, resulting in $1,063,640 in
unrestricted assigned funds.
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o The largest capital projects completed by the City this year were the completion
of the Public Works Site, major and minor road treatments along with the
purchase of right-of-way for future road improvement projects.

o The City uses a brokerage service to negotiate the best rates possible for health
coverage. In addition, the City offers a Qualified High Deductible Health Plan along
with a Health Savings Account (HSA) in an effort to reduce the escalating increases
in health insurance premiums.

o As mandated by the Utah State Legislature, the City will contribute retirement
contributions for employees in the Tier | system at the rates approved. This year, an
increase was approved for Public Safety Tier | from 32.20 percent to 32.28 percent.
The City does contribute through the Utah Retirement Systems on behalf of
employees who had previously retired from a government position prior to
employment with Cottonwood Heights (so-called post-retired employees) prior to
July 1, 2010. The City will continue to provide a 401k a contribution equal to the
contributions for those City employees as defined by their individual contracts: 11.86
percent for post retired from the public employee system and 25.49 percent for post
retired from the public safety employee system.

o As mandated by the Utah State Legislature, the City will also contribute retirement
contributions for employees in the Tier Il system at the rates approved. An increase
for Tier 1l public safety employees was approved from 21.72 percent to 21.74
percent. There was no overall rate change for non-public safety employees. The
stated rates include all required employer contributions, including 401k contributions.
o All new hires, after July 1, 2011, who were not previously employed with a

participating employer and therefore a participant in the Tier | system will be
enrolled in the Tier Il retirement system.

o The City has recently chosen to contribute an additional amount of 401k
contributions to all Tier Il employees, to equalize overall Tier Il contributions
with contributions made for Tier | employees.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Cottonwood Heights’ finances.
Questions concerning any information provided in this report or a request for additional financial
information should be addressed to: Cottonwood Heights, attn: David Muir, City Treasurer/
Financial Reporting Manager, 2277 Bengal Blvd., Cottonwood Heights, UT 84121.
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowances)
Prepaids

Net Pension asset

Restricted Cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and rights of way
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and systems
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles
Infrastructure

Total assets

DEFFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Accrued liabilites
Nonspendable collections
Net pension liability
Non-current liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred uncollected property tax revenue
Deferred property tax revenue

Deferred pension inflows

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Bond Debt Service
Impact Fees
Unrestriced

Total net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

$ 5,736,041
2,923,559
17,077

4,992

909,151

33,135,865

13,589,909
969,709
3,119,976
14,666,643

75,072,923

2,569,058
2,569,058

413,480
1,660,751
124,539
2,028,250

1,918,707

19,016,337
25,162,064

142,793
389,560

1,179,903
1,712,256

43,717,022

805,741
103,410
6,141,488

$ 50767660

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

-28-



Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and Changes
in Net Position

Program Revenues Primary Government
Operating Capital Governmental '
Charges for Grants and Grants and Activities
Function / Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Total
Primary Government
Governmental activites

General government 3,736,218 774,331 151,605 - (2,810,281)
Public Safety 9,910,192 391,549 37,787 - (9,480,857)
Highways and public improvements 4,907,822 - 1,290,964 1,410,309 (2,206,549)
Community and economic development 1,177,023 315,543 - - (861,480)
Interest on long-term debt (net of premium) 954,272 - - - (954,272)
Total governmental activities 20,685,527 1,481,423 1,480,356 1,410,309 (16,313,439)

General Revenues:
Property Tax 6,964,927
Sales Taxes 6,176,453
Municipal Energy Taxes 2,094,365
Motor Vehicle Fee-In-Lieu (of property taxes) 387,839
Franchise Tax 335,910
Unrestricted Investment earnings 103,347
Gain/Loss on Sale/Disposal of Capital Assets 3,875
Miscellaneous 151,394
Total general revenues and transfers 16,218,111
Changes in net position (95,327)
Net position - beginning, as previously reported 50,862,987
Net position - ending 50,767,660

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

Capital Community Dev Total
General Projects Debt Service  Renewal Agency ~ Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds |
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2868955 § 1063640 § 618 $ 1802829 § 5,736,041
Accounts receivables (net): 2,923,559 - - - 2,923,559
Prepaids 17,077 - - - 17,077
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents - 909,151 - - 909,151
Total assets 5,809,591 1,972,790 618 1,802,829 9,585,828
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 413,480 - - - 413,480
Accrued liabilites 1,001,101 - - - 1,001,101
Nonspendable collections 124,539 - - - / 124,539
Total liabilities 1,539,120 - - - 1,539,120
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred uncollected property tax revenue 142,793 - - - 142,793
Deferred property tax revenue 389,560 - - - 389,560
Total deferred inflows of resources 532,353 - - - 532,353
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable:
Prepaids 17,077 - - - 17,077
Restricted for:
Debt Service Related Funds - 805,741 - - 805,741
Impact Fees - 103,410 - - 103,410
Unrestricted:
Assigned:
PTO Vested 483,105 - - - 483,105
Capital Improvement - 1,063,640 - - 1,063,640
Debt Service - - 618 - 618
CommDev Renewal Agency - - - 1,802,829 1,802,829
Unassigned:
General Fund 3,237,936 - - - 3,237,936
Total fund balances 3,738,118 1,972,790 618 1,802,829 7,514,354
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances § 5809591 § 1972790 § 618 $ 1802829 § 9585828

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

Total fund balances - governmental fund types:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are differenet because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources;
therefore, they are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued bond interest, are not due
and payable in the current period and, therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net pension liabilities and assets are not available resources and, therefore are not

7,514,354

65,482,103

(21,594,694)

reported in the funds. (634,103)
Net position of governmental activities 50,767,660
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Capital Community Dev Total
General Projects Debt Service Renewal Agency Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes: '
Property $ 6923563 § e $ - $ 41,364 6,964,927
Sales 6,138,449 - - - 6,138,449
Municipal Energy 2,094,365 - - - 2,094,365
Motor Vehicle Fee-in-lieu (prop. tax) 387,839 387,839
Franchise - Cable TV 335,910 335,910
Transient Room 38,004 38,004
Licenses and Permits 774,331 - - 774,331
Intergovernmental: ‘
Federal Grant 35,878 - 35,878
State Grants 29,655 - 29,655
State Class C Roads 1,290,964 - 1,290,964
State Liquor Fund Allotment 37,787 - 37,787
Local Grants 86,072 1,306,899 1,392,971
Impact Fees 103,410 103,410
Charges for Services 315,543 - 315,543
Fines and Forfeitures 391,549 - - - 391,549
Investment Earnings 72,765 (2,180) - 32,763 103,347
Miscellaneous 102,538 48,857 - 151,394
Total revenues 19,055,213 1,456,985 - 74,127 20,586,325
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 3,386,743 3,386,743
Public Safety 9,237,144 - - 9,237,144
Highways and Public Improvements 2,344,245 224277 - - 2,568,521
Community and Economic Development 1,112,131 - - 74,098 1,186,229
Debt Service:
Principal - - 937,888 937,888
Interest - - 795,211 795,211
Capital Outlay:
General Government 9,975 - 9,975
Public Safety 171,072 97,672 - 268,744
Highways and Public Improvements 51,630 1,723,665 - 1,775,286
Total expenditures 16,312,941 2,045,604 1,733,099 74,098 20,165,741
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 2,742,272 (588,619) (1,733,099) 30 420,583
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sources:
Transfers In - 878,625 1,733,717 2,612,342
Sales of Capital Assets 4375 - - 4,375
(Uses):
Transfers to Capital Improvement Fund (878,625) - - (878,625)
Transfers to Debt Service Fund (1,733,717) - - (1,733,717)
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,607,967) 878,625 1,733,717 4,375
Net change in fund balances 134,305 290,006 618 30 424,958
Fund balance - beginning of year 3,603,813 1,682,784 - 1,802,799 7,089,396
Fund balance - end of year $ 3738118  § 1972790 § 618 $ 1,802,829 7,614,354

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Reconciliaton of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 424,958

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is

allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital outlays 2,062,012
Depreciation (3,548,224)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations):

Asset deletions (8,006)
Depreciation deletions 7,504

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net position. The amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and

Bond Principal 400,000

Proceeds from capital leases provide current financial
resources to governmetnal funds by issuing debt which
increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position. Repayments of capital lease principal are
expenditures in the governmental fund, but reduce
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position:

Principal payments on capital lease 537,888
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require

the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Pension Net Position Adjustment 187,601

Change in accrued interest (208,481)

Amortization of bond premium 49,420
Change in net position of governmental activities $  (95327)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts Fund Actuals
Adopted Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance with
Budget Budget (See Notes) Final Budget
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 6,899,089 § 6,899,089 § 6,923,563 24474
Sales 5,906,000 5,906,000 6,138,449 232,449
E-911 Emergency Fees 265,000 265,000 - (265,000)
Municipal Energy + 2,170,596 2,170,596 2,094,365 (76,231)
Motor Vehicle Fee-in-lieu (prop. tax) 350,000 350,000 387,839 37,839
Franchise - Cable TV 306,700 306,700 335,910 29,210
Transient Room 25,000 25,000 38,004 13,004
Licenses and Permits 580,600 580,600 774,331 193,731
Intergovernmental:
Federal Grant 25,000 57,000 35,878 (21,122
State Grants - - 29,655 29,655
State Class C Roads 1,315,000 1,315,000 1,290,964 (24,036)
State Liquor Fund Allotment 45,000 45,000 37,787 (7,213)
Local Grants - - 86,072 86,072
Charges for Services 175,500 175,500 315,543 140,043
Fines and Forfeitures 490,000 490,000 391,549 (98,451)
Investment Eamings 14,000 14,000 72,765 58,765
Miscellaneous 65,254 75,778 102,538 26,760
Total revenues 18,632,739 18,675,263 19,055,213 379,950
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 3,523,378 3,499,985 3,396,718 (103,267)
Public Safety 10,031,023 10,116,642 9,408,216 (708,426)
Highways and Public Improvements 2,484,564 2,484,564 2,395,875 (88,689)
Community and Economic Development 1,127,782 1,174,282 1,112,131 (62,151)
Total expenditures 17,166,747 17,275,473 16,312,941 (962,532)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,465,992 1,399,790 2,742,272 1,342,482
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sources:
Sales of Capital Assets - - 4,375 4,375
(Uses):
Transfers to Capital Improvement Fund (278,625) (878,625) (878,625) -
Transfers to Debt Service Fund (1,733,717) (1,733,717) (1,733,717) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,012,342) (2,612,342) (2,607,967) 4,375
Net change in fund balances (546,350) (1,212,552) 134,305 1,346,857
Fund balance - beginning of year 3,603,813
Fund balance - end of year $ 3,738,118
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Community Development Renewal Agency
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts Fund Actuals
Adopted Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance with '
Budget Budget (See Notes) Final Budget
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Tax $ - $ - $ 41364 § 41,364
Investment Earnings - - 32,763 32,763
Total revenues ‘ - - 74,127 74,127
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Community and Economic Development 25,000 25,000 74,098 49,098
Total expenditures 25,000 25,000 74,098 49,098
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (25,000) (25,000) 30 25,030
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sources/(Uses):
Beginning Fund Balance Appropriated 25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
Net change in fund balances 30
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,802,799
Fund balance - end of year $ 1,802,829

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Cottonwood Heights (the City) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to local governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant
accounting policies for the City are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note.

1A - FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

Cottonwood Heights (the City), incorporated in 2005, is a political subdivision of the State of
Utah. The City is governed by a City Council comprised of an elected mayor who serves as
Chairman of the City Council and four elected City Council members. The City has determined
that there are no separately administered organizations that are controlled by or are dependent
upon the City. Control or dependence is determined on the basis of financial interdependence,
selection of governing authority, designation of management ability to significantly influence
operations and accountability for fiscal matters. Using these criteria, no potential component
units are included in the City’s financial statements.

The City’s financial reporting entity comprises the following:

Primary Government: Cottonwood Heights
Component Units: None

The accounting policies of Cottonwood Heights, Utah, conform to generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant
of such policies.

1B - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information on
all activities of the reporting government as a whole. Most effects of any inter-fund activities
have been eliminated from these statements.

The government-wide statements for the primary government are separated based on the
predominance of the type of revenues that support them. Governmental activities are normally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, while business type activities would receive
a significant portion of revenues from fees and charges for services.

The statement of activities is presented to show the extent that program revenues of a given
activity support direct expenditures of the function. Direct expenses are those that can clearly be
associated with a particular activity or program. Program revenues include: (1) charges to
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customers or privileges provided by a given function and (2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Other revenue
sources that are not reported as program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements:

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditure/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and
proprietary categories. All funds of Cottonwood Heights are considered to be major funds.

Cottonwood Heights has the funds described below:

Governmental Funds:
General Fund
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and always classified as a
major fund. It is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively
required to be accounted for in other funds.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for accumulation of financial resources for the
payment of principal and interest on the City’s debt payments.

Capital Project Fund

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or
construction of specific capital projects or items. The reporting entity includes only one
Capital Project Fund and it is used to account for the acquisition of capital assets.

Community Development Renewal Agency Fund
The Community Development Renewal Agency Fund (CDRA) is used to account for
resources restricted for use on approved public purpose projects.

1C - MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded
regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus
The government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are presented
using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b. below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the
“economic resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:
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a.  All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus.
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b.  Proprietary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating
income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows.
All assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their
activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. The City
no longer has any Proprietary Funds.

c.  Fiduciary funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations;
therefore, measurement focus is not applicable to them. The City has no Fiduciary
funds at this time.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities are presented using
the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, or economic asset used.
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-
like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
“measurable and available.” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the
amount. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City includes in available revenue only revenue
that will be collected in cash within one year following the close of the fiscal year, and in the
case of property tax revenue, only revenue that will be collected within 60 days of the close of
the fiscal year. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond and capital lease principal payments
which are reported when due.

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred, or economic asset used.
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1D - ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
NET POSITION (EQUITY)

Cash, Deposits and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, “cash, including time deposits” includes all
demand, savings accounts, and certificates of deposits of the City. For the purpose of the
proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows, “cash and cash equivalents” include all demand and
savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an original maturity
of three months or less.

The City categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has
three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant other unobservable inputs. The City does not
have any investments that are measured using Level 2 or 3 inputs. Additional cash and
investment disclosures are presented in Notes 2B and 3A.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may
result in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are
classified as “due to and from other funds.” Short-term interfund loans are reported as “interfund
receivables and payables.” Long-term interfund loans (non-current portion) are reported as
“advances from and to other funds.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds within
governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. See Note 3G for details
of interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end. The City has no
interfund receivables or payables.

Receivables and Payables

In the government-wide statements and the fund financial statements, receivables consist of all
revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Major receivable balances for the
governmental activities include sales tax, franchise tax, property tax, court fines and road cut
permits. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned and considered both
measurable and available.

Payables are composed of contract payments for public works, permitting and inspections,
engineering and the city attorney.

Capital Assets
The accounting treatment for property, plant, and equipment depends on whether the assets are
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

o Government-wide Statement Reporting of Capital Assets
The government-wide financial statements include capital assets on its Statement of Net Position.
All assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable.
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Donated assets and assets received by a service concession arrangement should be recorded at
acquisition value rather than fair value. Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority
of the infrastructure assets transferred from Salt Lake County primarily during the period ending
June 30, 2005. The City’s capitalization threshold is $10,000.

Depreciation of all exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position.
Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Description Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 45 years
Machinery and Equipment 5to 15 years
Vehicles 5 years
Infrastructure — original costs 15-50 years
- annual upgrade costs (Must increase remaining life by a

minimum of 33%. Upgrade costs
amortized over new remaining life.)

o Fund Financial Statement Reporting of Capital Assets
In the fund financial statements, assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for
as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets have external restrictions placed upon them that limit their availability. These
assets may only be expended if their use is in adherence with these restrictions. Some
restrictions are in place due to provisions of State or Federal law. Bond proceeds held for
construction and funds dedicated to be held for debt service payments are restricted by the
Trustee. Class C Road taxes, governmental grants and impact fees are restricted revenues and
may only be used for their intended purpose.

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s), and will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

In addition to assets, financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
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Long-term Debt
The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are reported in the
government-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources is reported as a liability in the
government-wide statements.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as a liability in the fund financial
statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principle
and interest reported as expenditures.

Pension Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions
from URS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by URS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused
Vacation/PTO benefits. The vested equivalent value for earned compensated absences is
calculated and recorded, at fiscal yearend, as an unrestricted assigned fund balance.

Equity Classifications
Government-wide Statements
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in four components:

a. Net investment in capital assets—Consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and related debt.

b. Restricted—Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by
(1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

c. Unrestricted—All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted”
or “net investment in capital assets”.

Fund Statements
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is reported in three major
categories, comprising five separate definitions: Nonspendable, Restricted and Unrestricted
(which can be shown as Committed, Assigned and Unassigned). Each category is defined as
follows:
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a) Nonspendable — Prepaid expenditures and other similar assets (a) not in spendable
form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

b) Restricted — Assets constrained by externally imposed legal restrictions, by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, or restrictions set by
creditors, grantors or contributors.

¢) Committed — Formally designated by City Council through ordinance for specific
purposes, prior to the end of the fiscal year being reported, that cannot be used for
another purpose unless the City Council formally changes the use through a
superseding ordinance.

d) Assigned — Amounts constrained by the City Council or for a specific purpose
normally through the appropriations process establishing and amending budgets.
Funds in Capital Projects fund or other permanent funds are by their nature assigned
to the purpose for which the resources are collected, without extra ordinary formal
action.

e) Unassigned — The General Fund is the only fund that could have a positive
unassigned fund balance of funds, not classified in any other classification, which
may be used for any governmental purpose.

When both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available for use, it is the City’s policy to
use restricted fund balance first, then committed funds, followed by assigned and then
unassigned.

Fund balance may be committed by the City Council through passage of budget resolutions. The
City Council has authorized the City Manager to make determinations of assigned fund balance.

1E - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES

Revenue

Property taxes (including Motor Vehicle fee-in-lieu), franchise taxes, licenses, shared revenue,
and interest are susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year end on
behalf of the City are also recognized as revenue. Other receipts and taxes become measurable
and available when cash is received by the City and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the “susceptible to accrual” criteria
are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

Property taxes are based on the assessments against property owners. Tax levies on such assessed
values are certified to the County Treasurer prior to the commencement of the fiscal year.
Property taxes become a lien on January 1 and are levied on the first Monday in August. Taxes
are due and payable on November 1 and are delinquent after November 30 of each year. Property
taxes are collected by the Salt Lake County Treasurer and remitted to the City shortly after
collections occur.
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Sales taxes are collected by the Utah State Tax Commission and are remitted to the City monthly
approximately two months after the period in which the taxes are collected by local businesses if
all filings are made timely.

Expenditures/Expenses
In the government-wide financial statements, expenditures are classified by function for
governmental activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:
Governmental Funds—BY Character:
Current (further classified by function and object)
Debt Service
Capital Outlay

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources.

Interfund Transfers

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity is classified as
interfund transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers
between individual governmental funds have been eliminated.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

By its nature as a local government unit, the City is subject to various federal, state, and local
laws and contractual obligations. An analysis of the City’s compliance with significant laws and
regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over City resources follows.

2A - FUND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

The City complies with all state and local laws and regulations requiring the use of funds
separate from the General Fund. The legally required separate funds used by the City include the
following:

Fund Required By

None
2B - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments for Cottonwood Heights are governed by the Utah Money
Management Act (Utah Code Annotated, Title 51, Chapter 7, “the Act”) and by rules of the Utah
Money Management Council (“the Council”). Following are discussions of Cottonwood
Heights’ exposure to various risks related to its cash management activities.
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Deposit-Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, Cottonwood
Heights’ deposits may not be recovered. The City’s policy for managing custodial credit risk is
to adhere to the Money Management Act. The Act requires all deposits of Cottonwood Heights
to be in a qualified depository, defined as any financial institution whose deposits are insured by
an agency of the federal government and which has been certified by the Commissioner of
Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of the
Utah Money Management Council. The City has no other deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

Investment-Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
City’s policy for limiting the credit risk of investments is to comply with the Utah Money
Management Act. The City has no other investment policy that would further limit its investment
choices.

Cottonwood Heights is authorized to invest in the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund
(PTIF), an external pooled investment fund managed by the Utah State Treasurer and subject to
the Act and State Money Management Council regulatory oversight. The PTIF is not registered
with the SEC as an investment company, and deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise
guaranteed by the State of Utah.

The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and
losses, net of administration fees, of the PTIF are allocated based upon the participants’ average
daily balances. A copy of the Public Treasurers Investment Fund is available for viewing on the
Utah State Treasurer’s website at http://www.treasurer.state.ut.us.

The City categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has
three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant other unobservable inputs. The City does not
have any investments that are measured using Level 2 or 3 inputs. Additional cash and
investment disclosures are presented in 1D and 3A.

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements

are those that Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in
the statement of net position at the end of each period. Investments’ fair value are shown in the

table below. All of the City’s investments are categorized as Level 1 Inputs.
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As of June 30, 2018, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in vears)

Total Fair More than
Investment Tvpe Value Less than 1 lto 5 6to 10 10
State of Utah PTIF $5.579.441 £5.579 441 $ - $ - 5
Total $5.579.441 £5.579 441 $ - $ - 5

Twice a year, at June 30 and December 31, the investments in the PTIF are valued at fair value.
As of June 30, 2018, the City had $5,579,441 invested in the PTIF which had a fair value factor
of 1.00378796 making the City investment equal to $5,600,575.80 for an unrealized gain of
$21,134.70. Due to the insignificance of this amount in relation to the funds affected by the
unrealized gain, the fair value of investments in this external investment pool is deemed to be the
amortized cost of the investment.

Investment-Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Cottonwood Heights manages its exposure to declines in fair
value by investment only in the PTIF and by adhering to the Utah Money Management Act
(Section 51, chapter 7 of the Utah Code) which provides guidance for handling depository and
investing transactions in order to minimize interest rate risk. The City has no other formal policy
that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates.

2C - REVENUE RESTRICTIONS

The City has various state restrictions placed over certain revenue sources. The primary
restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use

B & C Road Funds Eligible B & C Roads
Awarded Asset Seizures Further Enforcement Actions
Impact Fees Eligible public improvements

For the period ended June 30, 2018, the City complied, in all material respects, with these
revenue restrictions.
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2D - DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS

General Obligation Debt

No long-term General Obligation debt shall be created by any city unless the proposition to
create such debt shall have been submitted to a vote of qualified electors. Cities shall not contract
for debt in an amount exceeding four percent of the fair market value of taxable property in their
jurisdictions. For the period ended June 30, 2018, the City had no outstanding General
Obligation debt.

Other Long-term Debt

Cities may incur indebtedness for the purpose of supplying such city water, sewer, or electricity
when such public works are owned and controlled by the municipality. The additional
indebtedness shall not exceed four percent for first and second class cities and eight percent for
third class cities of the fair market value of taxable property in their jurisdictions. The City has
no such debt at this time.

2E - FUND EQUITY RESTRICTIONS

General Fund Balance Restrictions

Utah Code 10-6-116(4) requires that only the “fund balance in excess of 5 percent of total
revenues of the general fund may be utilized for budget purposes.” The remaining 5 percent must
be maintained as a minimum fund balance. The maximum in the general fund may not exceed 25
percent of the total actual revenue of the general fund (10-6-116(2)). The City Council has
adopted a City code [chapter 2.150.020.11] directing that a minimum 5 percent fund balance, as
required by law, with a desired target minimum of 6 percent. Currently the City’s adjusted fund
balance is under the maximum allowed by state law.

2F - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In the governmental fund statements the accounting basis and the budgetary basis are the same.
The Statement (Schedule) of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and
Actual presented for the general fund and the capital projects fund are presented on the
budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget.

Budgets are legally required for governmental funds. Annual budgets are prepared and adopted
by the City Council on or before June 22 for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1, in
accordance with Utah State law. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and
proposed sources of financing for such expenditures. Prior to June 22" a public hearing is
conducted to obtain taxpayer input. Budgets are adopted by ordinance in total for each
department. Management can move budgeted amounts within a department or decrease
appropriations. The City Council can increase appropriations after having a public hearing.
During the year ended June 30, 2018 the City Council amended the original budget three times.

Budgets for the Capital Projects Fund are also prepared using the modified accrual basis of
accounting and are adopted on an annual basis. Project budgets for the Capital Projects fund are

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 -47 -



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

prepared annually and ending balances may be re-appropriated by Council action in the
following year

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES / ACCOUNTS

The following notes present detailed information to support the amounts reported in the basic
financial statements for its various assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and expenditures/
expenses.

3A - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has
three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant other unobservable inputs. The City does not
have any investments that are measured using Level 2 or 3 inputs. Additional cash and
investment disclosures are presented in 1D and 2B.

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements

are those that Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in
the statement of net position at the end of each period. Investments’ fair value are shown in the

table below. All of the City’s investments are categorized as Level 1 Inputs.

Below is a reconciliation of the year-end balance invested in the Public Treasurers’ Investment
Fund and other cash and investments presented in the statement of net position:

Utah State Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund balance $ 5,579,441
Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement of Net Position:
Investments $ 5,579,441
Cash on Hand 15,219
Held by Trustee 805,741
Deposits 244,791
Total $ 6,645,192
Per Statement of Net Position:
Unrestricted Cash $ 5,736,041
Restricted Cash 909,151
Total $ 6,645,192
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3B - RESTRICTED ASSETS
The restricted assets as of June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Type of Restricted Asset Cash/Time Deposits

Governmental Activities:
Impact Fees 103,410
Bond Funds held in trust 805,741
Total $ 909,151

3C - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable of the governmental activities consists principally of fiscal year accruals of
sales taxes, property taxes, court fines and road cut permits receivable.

Receivables details at June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Delinguent Property Taxes Receivable $ 127,689
Invoiced Receivables (including SLCo Road Grant) 1,317,924
Invoiced Business Licensing 36,979
Prior Fiscal Revenues - Sales & Transient Room 1,126,573
Prior Fiscal Revenue - Energy Use Tax 142,384
Prior Fiscal Revenue - Franchise Fees 159,839
Prior Fiscal Revenues - Property Taxes 12,171

Net Accounts Receivable $ 2,923,559
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3D - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the period ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:

Balance at Disposals Balance at
Governmental activities: June 30, 2017 Additions I Misc Adj June 30, 2018
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land (non-infrastructure) 9,262,154 - - 9,262 154
Land related Infrastructure 23,370,289 503423 - 23873712
Total assets, not being depreciated 32632 442 503423 - 33,135,865
Capital assets, depreciable:
Buildings 13,515,668 570,266 - 14,085,934
Equipment 2,178,497 293429 - 2471926
Vehicles 5410736 44 926 (8,006) 5447 656
Infrastructure - Roads 33,055,492 623,377 - 33,678,869
Infrastructure - Bridges 905,375 - - 905,375
Infrastructure - Parkways 11,054,195 13122 - 11,067 317
Infrastructure - Storm Drains 2060 468 13,467 - 2,073,935
Total capital assets, depreciable 68,180,430 1,558 587 (8,006) 69731012
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings (151,360) (344 665) (496,025)
Equipment (1,342.811) (159 406) (1,502,217)
Vehicles (1,250476) (1,085211) 8,006 (2,327 681)
Infrastructure - Roads (27 301,376) (1,289,209) (28,590,585)
Infrastructure - Bridges (406,947) (27 884) (434,831)
Infrastructure - Parkways (3,127 220) (596,561} (3,723,781)
Infrastructure - Storm Drains (263,868) (45,787} (309,655)
Total accumulated depreciation (33,844,057) (3,548,724) 8,006 (37.384,775)
Governmental activities, capital 66,968,815 (1486713 - 65482102
Capital Debt (22494 689) (21,765,082)
Construction Funds in Trust 68,388 -
Assets, net of related debt 44 542 514 43 717,020

Depreciation was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 378,430
Public Safety 824,382
Highways & Public Improvements 2,345,912

Total depreciation expense and adjustment $ 3,548,724
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Capital Assets under Capital Lease

The City has acquired public safety and public works vehicles through capital leases. The
amortization of these assets is included in depreciation expense. As of June 30, 2018 the net
book values are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Public Safety Vehicles $ 1,452,754
Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,056,468)
Net Book Value $ 396,286
Public Works Vehicles $ 2,747,369
Less Accumulated Depreciation (493,606)
Net Book Value $ 2,253,763

3E - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Payables in the general fund are composed of contract payments for public works, permitting and
inspections, engineering and the city attorney.

3F - LONG-TERM DEBT

Cottonwood Heights’ long-term debt consists of two sales tax revenue bond and capital leases as
described below:

As of June 30, 2018, the City had long-term debt payable from originating from two issues of
sales tax revenue bonds. These bonds are described below:

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Payable:
Series 2014 - City Municipal Center

3.695%, (07/2/14 original amount $13,770,000) $ 13,770,000
Less principal payments (775,000)
Remaining Bond Premium unamortized 751,245
$ 13,746,245

Proceeds from the 2014 Sales Tax Revenue Bond were used towards the construction of the City
Municipal Center.

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Payable:
Series 2016 - City Municipal Center

2.686%, (07/12/16 original amount $3,280,000) $ 3,280,000
Less principal payments (40,000)
Remaining Bond Premium unamortized 286,564
$ 3,526,564
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Proceeds from the 2016 Sales Tax Revenue Bond were used towards the construction of the City
Municipal Center as well as the construction of the City’s public works facility.

Capital Leases Payable:
Zions Bank - Police Vehicles
1.530%, (07/13/16 original amount $1,452,754) $ 1,179,592

$ 1,179,592

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for the purchase of Police vehicles. This
lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been
recorded at the present value of all future lease payments as of the inception date.

Capital Leases Payable:

Zions Bank - Public Works Vehicles

1.72%, (08/10/16 original amount $228,126) $ 197,180
$ 197,180

Chase Bank - Public Works Vehicles
1.65%, (09/14/16 original amount $2,519,243) $ 2,285,463

$ 2,285,463

The City has entered into two lease agreements as lessee for the purchase of Public Works
vehicles. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and,
therefore, has been recorded at the present value of all future lease payments as of the inception
date.

Changes in Long-term Debt
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the period ended June 30, 2018:

Balance Balance Due Within
Type of Debt June 30, 2017  Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 One Year
Capital leases $ 4,200,123 % - $ (818,551) $ 3,381,572 $ 1,448,707
Sales Tax Revenue Bond '14 13,355,000 - (360,000) 12,995,000 370,000
Bond Premium '14 787,018 - (35,774) 751,245 N/A
Sales Tax Revenue Bond '16 3,280,000 - (40,000) 3,240,000 100,000
Bond Premium '16 300,211 - (13,646) 286,565 N/A
Total Long Term Debt  $ 21,922,352  $ - $ (1,267,971) $ 20,654,382 $ 1,918,707
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Annual Debt Service Requirements
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for governmental long-term debt principal and
interest as of June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ended

June 30 Principle Interest Total
2019* $ 1,016,457 $ 721,349 $ 1,737,806
2020 1,123,578 740,242 1,863,820
2021* 1,153,539 714,606 1,868,145
2022 1,187,726 683,735 1,871,461
2023* 1,511,816 655,415 2,167,231

Thereafter 13,904,118 5,950,927 19,855,045
Total $ 19,897,235 $ 9,466,274 $ 29,363,509

* Bi-annually, the Public Safety vehicle lease is partially paid by a dealer buy back, 2019 is such a year.
3G - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Operating Transfers
Transfers Out Transfers In

General Fund $2,607,967
Debt Service Fund $1,733,717
Capital Projects Fund 878,625

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION

4A - EMPLOYEE PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

General Information about the Pension Plans

Plans description: Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah
Retirement Systems. The Utah Retirement Systems are comprised of the following Pension Trust

Funds:

Defined Benefit Plans

e Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System);
is a multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system.

e The Public Safety Retirement System (Public Safety System) is a mixed
agent and cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement system;

« Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees
System) is a multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system.
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« Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public
Safety and Firefighters System) is a multiple employer, cost sharing, public
employee retirement system.

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees
beginning on or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah
Retirement Systems, are members of the Tier 2 Retirement System.

The Utah Retirement Systems (Systems) are established and governed by the respective
sections of Title 49 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The Systems’ defined
benefit plans are amended statutorily by the State Legislature. The Utah State Retirement
Office Act in Title 49 provides for the administration of the Systems under the direction of the
Board, whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds
defined as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the
State of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit
terms.

URS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing Utah
Retirement Systems, 560 E. 200 S, Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website:
WWW.UrS.org.

Summary of Benefits by System

Benefits provided: URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.
Retirement benefits are as followings:

Years of service
System Final Average Salary required and/or age Benefit percent per year of service
eligible for benefits

Noncontributory Highest 3 years 30 years any age 2.0% per year all years Up to 4%
System 25 years any age’

20 years age 60

10 years age 62

4 years age 65
Public Safety System Highest 3 years 20 years any age 2.5% per year up to 20 years; Up to 2.5% or 4%

10 years age 60 2.0% per year over 20 years depending upon

4 years age 65 employer
Tier 2 Public Employees Highest 5 years 35 years any age 1.5% per year all years Up to 2.5%
System 20 years age 60

10 years age 62

4 years age 65
Tier 2 Public Safety Highest 5 years 25 years any age 1.5% per year all years Up to 2.5%
and Firefighter System 20 years age 60*

10 years age 62

4 years age 65

COLA™

*with actuarial reductions

**All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit except for
Judges, which is a compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price
Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused CPI increases may not be carried forward to subsequent years.
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Contribution Rate Summary

As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to
contribute certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the
Utah State Retirement Board. Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when
combined with employee contributions (where applicable) is expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Utah Retirement Systems Employer rate
Employee Employer Rate 401(k) Plan
Contributory System
111 Local Governmental Division - Tier 2*** N/A 15.11% 1.58%
Noncontributory System
15 Local Governmental Division - Tier 1 N/A 18.47% N/A
Public Safety Retirement System
Contributory
122 Tier 2 DB Hybrid Public Safety*** N/A 20.46% 1.26%
Noncontributory
49 Other Div B Noncontributory - Tier 1 N/A 32.20% N/A
Tier 2 DC Only ***
211 Local Government N/A 6.69% 10.00%
222 Public Safety N/A 9.72% 12.00%

***Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the Tier 1 plans

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 the employer and employee contributions to the Systems were as follows:

System Employer Contributions Employee Contributions
Noncontributory System $ 271,541 N/A
Public Safety System 481,823
Tier 2 Public Employee System 113,419
Tier 2 Public Safety 105,808
Tier 2 DC Only System 2,843 N/A
Total Contributions $ 975434

Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by System. Contributions in the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance
the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 Systems.
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Combined Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, we reported a net pension asset of $4,992 and a net pension liability of
$2,028,250.

(Measurement Date): December 31, 2017

Net Net
Pension  Pension  Proportionate Proportionate Share Change
Asset Liability Share December 31, 2016 (Decrease)

Noncontributory System $0 $840,199 0.1917693% 0.1829814% 0.0087879 %
Public Safety System $0 $1,181,670  2.4454912% 2.5129097%  (0.0674185) %
Tier 2 Public Employees System $0 $6,381 0.0723742% 0.0545308% 0.0178434 %
Tier 2 Public Safety & Firefighter Sys $4,992 $0 0.4314339% 0.3146488% 0.1167851%
Total Net Pension Asset/Liability $4,992 $2,028,250

The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2017 and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial
procedures. The proportion of the net pension asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the
employer’s actual contributions to the Systems during the plan year over the total of all
employer contributions to the System during the plan year.

For the year ended June 30, 2018 we recognized pension expense of $787,925.

As of June 30, 2018, we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources relating to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $650,327 $57,410
Changes in assumptions $871,200 $74,284
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments $374,486 $1,032,860
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions $187,422 $15,349
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $485,623 $0
Total $2,569,058 $1,179,903

$485,623 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension’s results from
contributions made by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date

of December 31, 2016.
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These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows/

Year Ended December 31, (Inflows) of Resources
2018 $383,166

2019 $397,619

2020 $153,267

2021 $(47,851)

2022 $(1,943)

Thereafter $19,275

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50 Percent
Salary increases 3.25 - 9.75 percent, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.95 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

Mortality rates were developed from actual experience and mortality tables, based on gender,
occupation and age, as appropriate, with adjustments for future improvement in morality
based on Scale AA, a model developed by the Society of Actuaries.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the five year period ending December 31, 2016.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best- estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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Expected Return Arithmetic Basis

Long-Term
Target asset Real return expected portfolio
Asset class allocation arithmetic basis real rate of return
Equity securities 40% 6.15% 2.46%
Debt securities 20% 0.40% 0.08%
Real assets 15% 5.75% 0.86%
Private equity 9% 9.95% 0.89%
Absolute return 16% 2.85% 0.46%
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 0.00% 0.00%
Totals 100% 4.75%
Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.25%

The 6.95% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50%, a real
return of 4.45% that is net of investment expense.

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.95 percent.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from all
participating employers will be made at contractually required rates that are actuarially
determined and certified by the URS Board. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability. The discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond
Index Rate. The discount rate was reduced to 6.95 percent from 7.20 percent from the prior
measurement period.

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the
discount rate: The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 6.95 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower (5.95 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.95 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

System (5.95%) (6.95%) (7.95%)
Noncontributory System $2,272,292 $840,199 $(350,516)
Public Safety System 3,044,361 1,181,670  (336,920)
Tier 2 Public Employees System 75,134 6,381 (46,637)
Tier 2 Public Safety & Firefighter System 44,207 (4,992) (42,580)

Total $5,435,994 $2,023,258  $(776,653)
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Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plans fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued URS financial report.

Defined Contribution Savings Plans

The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems
Board and are generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement
Systems but may also be used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-
advantaged retirement savings programs authorized under sections 401(k), 457(b) and 408 of
the Internal Revenue Code. Detailed information regarding plan provisions is available in the
separately issued URS financial report.

Cottonwood Heights City participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans
with Utah Retirement Systems and ICMA-RC:

e  401(k) Plan (URS only)

o 457(b) Plan (URS and ICMA-RC)

e Roth IRA Plan (URS and ICMA-RC)

Employee and employer contributions to the Defined Contribution Savings Plans for fiscal
year ended June 30, were as follows:

2018 2017 2016

401(K) Plan (URS)

Employer Contributions $335,914 $352,912 $349,956

Employee Contributions $226,119 $240,276 $244,705
457 Plan (URS)

Employer Contributions $80,636 $112,039 $ 82,059

Employee Contributions $160,849 $137,258 $117,889
Roth IRA Plan (URS)

Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A

Employee Contributions $ 2110 $ 275 $ 3,025
457 Plan (ICMA-RC)

Employer Contributions $ 88,883 $ 74,713 $ 59,005

Employee Contributions $ 95,634 $ 84,526 $ 1,242
457 Roth Plan (ICMA-RC)

Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A

Employee Contributions $ 46,898 $ 39,994 $ 34,371
Roth IRA Plan (ICMA-RC)

Employer Contributions N/A N/A N/A

Employee Contributions $ 10,708 $ 10,435 $ 16,793
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4B - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has
purchased comprehensive general liability insurance through the Utah Local Governments Trust.
The City pays premiums to the Trust for its general insurance coverage, automobile liability, and
personal injury protection. The Trust is self-sustaining through member premiums. The City is
subject to a minimal deductible for claims.

4C — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events were evaluated through December 11, 2018, which is the date that the
financial statements were available to be issued. No subsequent events were reportable.
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - Utah Retirement Systems

As Reported December 31, 2017
Last 10 Years *

Proporation of the net pension liability

Proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset)

Covered payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-
employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability

Tier 2 Lk
Noncontributory Public ; Public
Year- : Public
Retirement Safety Safety &
end Empoyees il
System System Firefighter
System
System

2017 0.1917693% 2.4454912% 0.0723742% 0.4314339%
2016 0.1829814% 2.5129097% 0.0545308% 0.3146488%
2015 0.1556506% 2.3769143% 0.0409095% 0.3793566%
2014 0.1425470% 2.1737910% 0.3401780% 0.4581430%
2017 $ 840,199 $1,181670 §$ 6,381 $ (4,992)
2016 1,174,965 1,566,289 6,083 (2,731)
2015 880,747 1,159,818 (89) (5,543)
2014 618,973 859,588 (1,031) (6,777)
2017 $ 1,656,658 $2,043451 $ 708,586 $ 455,286
2016 1,697,688 2,287,211 447,197 259,971
2015 1,517,660 2,129,632 264,295 225,749
2014 1,441,633 2,061,024 167,094 189,494
2017 50.72% 57.83% 0.90% -1.10%
2016 69.21% 68.48% 1.36% -1.05%
2015 58.03% 54.46% -0.03% -2.46%
2014 42.90% 41.70% -0.06% -3.60%
2017 91.9% 90.5% 97.4% 103.0%
2016 87.3% 86.1% 95.1% 103.6%
2015 87.8% 87.6% 100.2% 110.7%
2014 90.2% 89.0% 103.5% 120.5%

* In accordance with paragraph 81.a of GASB 68, employers will need to disclose a 10-year history of their proportionate
share of the net pension liability (asset) in their RSI. This schedule will need to be built prospectively. The schedule above is

for the 4 years calculated and reported to date.

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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Schedule of Contributions - Utah Retirement Systems
As Reported June 30, 2018
Last 10 Fiscal Years **

Contributions in Contributions as
As of fiscal relation to the a percentage of
year Actuarial contractually Contribution covered
ended Determined required deficiency employee
June 30, _Contributions contribution  __ (excess)  Covered payroll payroll
Noncontributory Retirement System
2018 $ 271,541 $ 271541 $ = $1,625,219 16.71%
2017 293,806 293,806 - 1,744,071 16.85%
2016 253,059 253,059 - 1,579,547 16.02%
2015 223,125 223,125 - 1,459,615 15.29%
2014 199,098 199,098 - 1,435,183 13.87%
Public Safety System
2018 481,823 481,823 - 2,040,777 23.61%
2017 507,270 507,270 - 2,253,825 22.51%
2016 480,110 480,110 - 2,141,005 22.42%
2015 442 527 442 527 - 2,084,318 21.23%
2014 427,269 427,269 - 2,094,198 20.40%
Tier 2 Public Empoyees System* ‘
2018 113,419 113,419 - 750,155 15.12%
2017 94,722 94,722 - 635,549 14.90%
2016 43,704 43,704 - 293,118 14.91%
2015 33,474 33,474 - 224,054 14.94%
2014 21,173 21,173 - 151,341 13.99%
Tier 2 Public Safety & Firefighter System*
2018 105,808 105,808 - 516,371 20.49%
2017 69,111 69,111 - 339,223 20.37%
2016 48,899 48,899 - 240,487 20.33%
2015 43,078 43,078 - 210,897 20.43%
2014 21,526 21,526 - 105,205 20.46%
Tier 2 DC Only System*
2018 $ 2843 $ 2843 $ 5 $ 42,504 6.69%
2017 2,319 2,319 - 34,667 6.69%
2016 1,706 1,706 - 25,505 6.69%
2015 4,506 4,506 - 68,822 6.55%
2014 1,553 1,653 - 26,260 5.91%

* Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1
systems. Tier 2 systems were created effective July 1, 2011.

++» Paragraph 81.a of GASB 68 requires employers to disclose a 10-year history of contributions in RSI. This
schedule will need to be built prospectively. Contributions as a percentage of covered-payroll may be
different than the board certified rate due to rounding and other administrative issues.

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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RSI-NOTE 1

1A CHANGES IN ASSUMPTONS

As a result of an experience study conducted as of December 31, 2016, the Board adopted
recommended changes to several economic and demographic assumptions that are used in the
actuarial valuation. The assumption changes that had the largest impact on the Total Pension
Liability (and actuarial accrued liability) include a decrease in the investment return assumption
from 7.20% to 6.95%, a reduction in the price inflation assumption from 2.60% to 2.50% (which
also resulted in a corresponding decrease in the cost-of-living-adjustment assumption for the
funds with a 4.00% annual COLA max), and the adoption of an updated retiree mortality table
that is developed using URS’s actual retiree mortality experience. There were changes to several
other demographic assumptions, but those changes had a minimal impact on the Total Pension
Liability (and actuarial accrued liability).
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Cottonwood Heights, Utah
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts Fund Actuals
Adopted Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance with |
Budget Budget (See Notes) Final Budget
REVENUES
Federal Grant $ - $ - $ - $ .
State Grants 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,306,899 (693,101)
Impact Fees - Current Collections - - 103,410 103,410
Investment Earnings - - (2,180) (2,180)
Miscellaneous : - - 48,857 48,857
Total revenues 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,456,985 (543,015)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Highways and Public Improvements 2,421,000 3,184,745 2,045,604 o (1,139,141)
Total expenditures 2,421,000 3,184,745 2,045,604 (1,139,141)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (421,000) (1,184,745) (588,619) 596,126
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sources/(Uses):
Beginning Fund Bal Appropriated 142,375 806,120 (806,120)
Transfers from General Fund 278,625 878,625 878,625 -
Sales Tax Revenue Bond - - - -
Sale of Bonds - Premium - - - -
Capital Leases . = - 5
Total other financing sources (uses) 421,000 1,684,745 878,625 (806,120)
Net change in fund balances 290,006
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,682,784
Fund balance - end of year $ 1,972,790

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

This section of Cottonwood Heights’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) provides
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and supplementary information says about the City’s overall
financial health.

The five divisions of the Statistical Section are as follows:

e Financial Trends: Included schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

o Revenue Capacity: Included schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s
most significant local revenue sources, property tax, sales tax, and enterprise fund revenues.

e Debt Capacity: Included schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

e Demographic and Economic Information: Included schedules offer demographic and economic
indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the City’s financial
activities take place.

e Operating information: Included schedules contain data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the
activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules in derived from the audited financial statements
of Cottonwood Heights for the relevant year.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 - 69 -



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

saAnoe adAl-ssauisng ou sey Alip oy]  BjoN

Vel s LTS0S S 9660628 S CEC'e6S9G S BOY'E9EYS S  vE6TILYSS  960'G8Z'LG S L0G'G86'0S$  986'298'0S 199'29/'06 ¢ uopsod jau juswusanod Arewud (ejo]
G0€'899'6 156'210'6 126'€09' BYy'267'9 £29'L70'L ¥59'G28'y 867206’ 10€'99} 'y 186'/Sv'S 88%'LvL'9 pajoujsaiun
VIIN444 112802 4 66'59) 20400} 180'87} 196'2G 628'L¥9 £88'798 151’606 pajolisey
0zy'le8'sy$  S6L'IERYP S 6E6'GCY6YS  vEB'EG6YS  €89'GICLPS  B6L6EL6YS  89W26GPS  LLE'LLV'OPS  9lGTHSHY aoLLey $ Sjosse [e}idea ul JuaLLjsenu|
Juswiusanob Aewid
Or'eeLss s LTS0S S 88610628 76e'ee'9S S 6OP'EIEVS S ¥E6'CILYSS  960'98Z1G S 0G'9B6'0G S 986'298'0G 199'79/'0G  § uomsod jou saiinjoe [ejuswusencb jgjo]
60£'899' 156'L10'6 126'609' 62679 £29'L10'L ¥59'G28'y 86206’ 10€'99) 'Y 186'/S%'S 88Y'L¥1'9 pajoLsaiun
18178 122'80C 8.0'12C 616'69} 20400} 180'871 196'L8 628'L19 £88'798 151'606 pejouisey
0Z7'1e8'sy §  G6L'IESYPS  6E6'STYBYS  PESVEGGYS  €89'GLZUy$  66L'BELGYS  [89WT6SYS  LEMAL'ORS  QLSTHSYR wo'Lley $ sjsse [eyded ul JuaLuisanu|
SOJIIA}OB [BJUBLIBA0S)
600¢ 010¢ L1102 404 £10¢ 7102 G10¢ 910¢ L1102
1B [e9s4
(Bununoage Jo siseq [eniaoe)
SIB9A [BOSI4 UB] JSe] )
Juauodwo?) Aq uonisod JoN
sjyblaH poomuoy0)
1-14YHO :SANTYL TVIONVYNIS

-70 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

(660'199'21) (geL'eer'el)s (o929’ th)s  (ug'ozz'el)s  (re0'we6l)s  (e22'856721)s  (6GL'90LW1)s  (020'sl'SHS  (2992zz'ol)s  (pev'eleal
(660199'Z1) (gzL'eov'cl)s  (v9'zea’l)s  (916'9z2'el)s  (veove6'vL)s  (e22'85€24)S  (6S1'o0swu)  (0z0'sl'sl)s  (ze9eze’al)s  (eev'ele’al)
196'/68°C §  LI6'S0Z'C §  09L'/GZ'€ § 005207 §  /8€6LL'E § WG9 & €98ViLY §  6v6'SLLY §  892°€€0V §  880°7LY S
186'166'C 116502 091'/52°¢ 005'20£2 186'611'C 716'2L%'9 £987.LLY 676'LL 892°€07 880'2/€'Y
614'520') 06€795 GI87IE 4816z £8/'162 £0E'¥8Y'e 190'896'} 020'9¢8 989'c€6 60E'0LY')
087'59%'} 99€'706'} 676'869' £01'06°} 610'119') 861'695'} 158'EpS') L16'60L') ¥55'782') 96¢°08Y'}
9.£'9l £er'ISl £60°€0¢ 662081 9z¢e'she 685767 el 285'65¢ 18€'222 £re'GLe
152'eLe 121'88S 7€8'995 022'255 9.9'825 1£5'965 201825 1£1°085 19v'98¢ 615166
16169y §  86G6YY $  69¥'SSS §  69SHr § 18620 §  L€€'09 $  MESAS §  e6CWh. $ 98LS9 § MeEiL §
980'650'9) §  6€9'669'9L S  908'688¥L$  QLOMEY'OLS  lzWELL8LS  /89'9//81S  2208Y6LS  696%62€6L S  02v'95C0c S  /25'989'02 $
980'650'9) 6£9'669'91 908'688'71 9,077’9} L2r'eLl’s) 189'921'81 220'18Y'61 696'62€ 61 0cy'950c  [25'589'02
» 000'GE - - . “ s 3
192'9¢ 018'9¢ £00'22 1618} ee'sl 88/') 266'L75 8.4'625 919'¢89 212756
208'995 599'v28 205209 966929 652'G69 988'0/6 860'950'} 7896111 0L0'9EL"} £20'L21')
266'606'G 1£6'10L' v12'58p'Y 62£'82L'Y G68'eLL'S 11€'256' L'8Ty'9 8Iy'951'G 0L£'L0L'S 228'106'
1006108 809'¢20' 009'G89'Z 0/6'09¢'8 595'09.' 662'2€6'8 ¥85'620'6 96°06'6 GLY'0£8'6 261'016'6
69S°0VL'Z §  68S'IEET §  L2v'¥B0T §  p9G'669T $  8I6'C98T $  00V'Z06T §  909°02y'T §  ZEL'ESL'E §  600'GOS'E §  BLZ'9ELE §
6002 0402 1102 4104 £10¢ 7102 5,02 9,0¢ 1402 8107
Ies [easl

(Bununoooe Jo siseq [eniode)

SIBaA [BOSI4 UB) Jse]
uosod JaN ul sabueyn
sjyblaH poomuoyo)

C-14VHO ‘SANFHL TVIONVNIA

asuadx3 JoN [eloL

SOIJAIOY [BJUBWILISA0S)
anuanay)(asuadx3) JoN
sanuansy weiboid [ejoL.

SBIAOY [BJUBWIUIBAOS) (B0

SUONNGLIUOY) pue Sjuels) [eyide)
suoinquyuo) pue sjueis) bunesado
Juswdojana( 2Iwoued3 pue Ajunwwoy)
Keges aiand
JUBWUIBAOQS) [BIBUBS)
Sa0IAIBg Joj sabieyn
SAIIAJOY [BJUSLULIBAOS)
Sanuandy weiboid

sasuadx3 [ejo]
SIIAOY [BJUSWLISACS) [B}0]

[ejuawiuanobiau)
19ap wuay) buoj uo Jsasayy|
JuawdojaAs( 2lwouoa3 pue Ayunwuwog)
sjaa1)g pue skemybiy
hiojes aland
JUBLUUIBAOS) [BIBUAS)
SAIIAOY [BJUSWUIBA0S)
sasuadx3

-71 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

fiejes a1jgqnd Japun S[eIouUBUL £1,0Z A4 U SUORNGUIUOY pue sjuels) Buneiad o} paaow - JusLwjojy pund Jonbi] ajelg .,

saninnoe adAj-ssauisng ou sey A9 ay] aloN

(coo'ese) ¢ (0uv99'M) § L0000y § (0L2S9') §  (vzg'ecz) § Sea'eve & (808'9/8') § (0eg'e6e) §  (zs'zel) §  (zg'se)  § uopisod JaN ul abuey [ejo.
- - - - - - - - - Kyanoy adA}-ssauisng
(z90'cze) §  (022'v99) §  c000key §  (b02'269'M) §  (ves'6zee) § Seaeve  §  (808'9/8')) & (06S'e6z) & (1zSzel) ¢ (ize'se) ¢ SONINOY [BUBWILIBA0S)
uoisod JoN ul abueyn
180'9827) ¢ 896'928'LL S €90TKB'GLS 74999071 S  0IZYOLTL S 862'80L7L 8 1SE'BZ8TLS  OSK'PSRTLS  LEL'00L'9LS  Zhl'8Iz'9l $ Juawusanob Aiewud ejo)
1£0'982') 856'628' L £59TK8'SL  7I8'9907L  0IZWOLTL  86080LTL 15660870 OSK'¥S8'YL 161'00L'9L  ZLL'BLg'9L  way [eads pue ‘siajsuel) 'sanuanal [eiaueh ejoL
. 5 867'986'C : 7 = . e e : way| [e1oadg
5 & “ o = = = = = 3 nojul siejsuel]
v¥6'eS 918'6¢ 60L'SS Shl'Lp 56.'s5 002'8Y 'S 822'¢8 68502y ¥6¢'151 SN0BUBB0SIHY
c 2 (9vs'ey) (026'16) : 0002} 729'8l 052'8 926'% 68 sjossy [ejide) Jo ajes uo (ss07) ueg)
88Y'281 862'65 el 4£6'S 658'9¢ ¥68'L8 956'6 9998 0£5's8 LH8'80) sBuwsea Juawisenu; pajouseiu)
(wesBoid-uou) suognquyuog) 3 sjuels)
£95'6€ 967'5e 029y GIS'eY . W W P W " Juawjolly pun Jonbi7 ejeig
099'052 199'952 666'29¢ vi'8Le 05+'967 816'€0¢ 199'50¢ 0zz'0z¢ £69'96¢ 016'5E¢ soxe] asiyoueld
112508 159'89y 6v1'9Cy 91000y 288'06¢ G£5'068 G/9'99¢ 125'65€ AR 6£8'28¢ neIT-ul-884 8oIBA JOJop
: : « - : : . 190'085'} 989701 59¢'160 xe asn Abiau3
19'148'Y 866'7€9'7 oh1'996'y 1SS'67L Y 200080 £08'162' 16278 766'269' £12'658'S £57'9219 saxe] soes
¥66'00v'9 §  98Z'¥E'9 §  /96'66Y'9 §  9LL'6S'9 §  L2'WS6'9 & 8v6'899 §  96G'9v9'9 §  vT6'0M8'9 §  78LEW8'9 §  /26'%96'9 § saxe] Auadoig
SBNUASY [BJBUY
(panupuoa ajnpayos)
6002 0102 102 4014 £107 7102 5102 9107 102 8107
les) |edsl

(Bupunoaoe Jo siseq [eniode)

-72 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

| Report — F

inancia

SIBAA [BSI4 U3 JSET
uoiyisod JaN ul sabueyy
sjyblaH poomuopo)
¢-LYVHO "SON3YL TWIONVNIS -

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

PaAIaSaIUN JO PAAISSSY ‘S30UB|E] PUN JO SUOHEOIISSE[O A|SNOIASYd ,
(ainpayos siy) uj sieak Joud payisse[osas pue) | L0z 1eaA [easy Joj suopuyeq 8dA | pund [ejuswiuienos) pue buiuoday souefeg pun4 #G "ON JuaWalelS gSyo) Jo sjuawalinbal ay) pajuswajdwi Ao 8y SjoN

yv8'0928$  28/8cC. §  80S'662G §  ¢/6LI6ES  SvvLlv'y$  ¥8L9¥S'C$  /BS'E09'GL$  2/0'G2.'G §  €BS'SBY'E $  LEZOLLE § Spunj [ejuaLuuIaA06 Jayjo [fe [ejo L
¥¥8'09¢2'8 28.'8¢2'L . = 5 - = = - sjoafoid [eyded - pansasaiun
- - < 2 = = £v8'SH8'l £11'228') 66.'208'} 628'208'} fouaby [emeusy AeQUILIOD
819 80IA18S 1080
. . 716'GLL'S 26'L16'E 6/2'29%'y 2Ie'8LY'e 152'080'¢ 116'00}'} 106'618 0v9'€90'} sjosloid [eyded
2 ‘pajoujsaiun
2 - < = 6916 oL'ee) 166'/G 6L0'€) = 0L¥'e0} s894 joedw|
z < ¢ = s 8 965'619°01 8v8'88.'C £88°798 172508 JsnJ] uf spun4 puog
2 $ g $  yes'ec $ 3 $ g $ . $ g $ 5 $ - $ 2 $ Juels [esapad
PajoLIsay
spuny _EcoEEm>om Jaylo ||y
86L'069'LS  Opp'Z86L $  veY'Iv0'C $  9Zv'9v.T$  1/29/9T$  1G6'92¥'2$  ¥9E'9ELT $  #BL'ZSEZ §  £18'E09C §  8LL'8ELE § pund [esaus9) [ejo)
oY L0%'L 691'6.L) . - = - s - = Lpanasaiun
18122 122802 - 5 = - = > » Ponasey
2 8 100'828'Z 114'086'C #€'685'C e L0v'T 09112 985'8£0'2 601'821'¢ 966'€2'¢ paubisseun
2 . - = 2 . 2 E 0Ev' vy G0L'e8Yy poubissy
pajoujsalun
- = Gae'sel €5€'TLL 66.'89 = . - = pajLIsay
. $ & $ zell8  $ 9GS $  vel'ze $  6096L 0§ ve9'le ¢ 8esel $  wise $ L0 $ 9|qepuadsuoN
pun4 [elsus9)
6002 0102 1102 4114 €102 7102 G102 9102 1102 8102
Jea\ [eosiq

(Bununooge Jo siseq [eniooe palypoLl)
SIE9A [B0SI4 U3 JSET
Spun4 [eJUSWUIBA0S) JO Seoueleg pund
sjyblaH poomuojo)
€-14YHO ‘SAN3YL TVIONVNIA

-73-

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

910Z A4 Ul SBNUBABY O} SB2IN0S JBYJO WO PAAOW SUO1I8|[0) 884 Joedw| ,

Zv0'l68'6 $  2eelee’6$  200'.v8'8$  86E'BS99 $  GZLiWL'L$  LEL'€l6'v $  2S6'6EL'LL S 192'2.0'8 $  ¥6E'680'L$  ZSEWLS'L $
v/9'262'0L $  2v0'L6B6 $  ZzZZ'Lee'6$  T00'/¥8'8 §  B86£'8S9'9$  SZLYLL §  LEL'€l6'v § TS6'6ELLL S 192'2.0'8%  ¥BE'680'L §
%000 %Lyl %1S5T %ES'L %E0'S %S0T %600 %912 %196 %156
(eeo’tor) ¢ (618'699) $ (czevze) § (e09'88L'2) §  Lece68y § (886'€2L2) $ GLe'99scL $ (0697299'6) §  (298°/86) $  8s6'vey $
(ee9'10%) (618'699) (eez'vLe) (€09'881'2) 12€'68Y (886'€L12) G12'99.'2) (069'299'6) (298'286) 856'vZy
G86'928 06200} - 008'7L GG5'G68') 0007Z} L17158%GL 0058 87£'G99'8 GlEY

- - e 008'vL 000'€5Z 00024 ¥28'8l 0058 89¢'1/8 SlE'Y

= g . - . 3 0pE'¥99'YL . /58'€65'E
586'928 = = - G85'ZYL'L - 192'89L'L - €21'002'y

2 062°004 5 ? E ] 3
(#20'66%°1) (656°206'L) (65+'699) (Zv2'0eL')) (ezv'ssy'L) (519'G/8) = (5z29'822) (5z9'8Lt) (eve'219'2)
v20'66%'L 656'206'L 657'699 Ly2'0eL') £27'S8Y'L G19'6/8 & §29'8/2 529'8Ly TreTL9T
(819'822'1) (601°022) (zzz'vLe) (e0r'€02'2) (8zz'90v'L) (886'581'2) (261'580'¢) (061°1.29'6) (512'€59'6) €85'02
0¥9'716'9) /890L°GL EYE2ESS) ¥89°120°/1 2/1°682°L) 002°00€°L2 18502902 05£'889'82 /81'069'62 172'591°0¢
606'8Y9°€ €€V ¥06') GYL'00LY ¥85929°€ €86'LLY'C 827'G19'G 968°0S.Y 6.7'G1G'LL 89G°925 'L 500750

= 000'S€E - e = 5 . . : =

5 €LL'ZE £00'2Z 16181 ¥2e'6L 88L°Cl 996'cl 655758 061'9/5 112'56L

= 180294 000052 985'92¢2 060'622 G81'80€ = G¥S'SLE 265891} 888'L£6
899255 280'605 182'985 868219 £61'069 2.0'0L6 289'5.0'L 820'8EL') 0L0'9EL’} 622'981'1
90%'188'2 69¥'621'C 9zL'v0v'L £€5'600°C #00'00%'2 y.6'6LL'E S97'826'2 209'209'2 6162652 1258952
655862 L 82€'14S'L 899'L¥S'9 292'196'L ¥51'062'8 9£9'v6Y'8 ¥2€'928'8 118'510'6 ¥61'28E'6 yrLLE2'6
860'€0°C G/1'S0EC 162202 ¥29'995'2 ¥20'6vL'C 115'81L'2 ¥52'520'€ GLEISL'E 811'20€'e £72'98€'C
€20'989°G) 8/GVE6'YL 121'8G1'G) 1828987} ¥¥5'€88'GL [T 06£'G8S /1 0912106} 2/6'90'02 Gee'985'0¢
7¥6'€S 918'6C 60.'GS SYLLY £89°G5 0028y 2er'lS 092'82 685'0C ¥6€°151
88Y'/81 86265 £11'9y GE6'ES 6G8'9€ y6€'L€ 956°L6 999'%8 0/6'68 1YE'€0L
152'€LT 21865 YE8'9YS 022'255 9/9'82S 1€G'9€S 201'82S 1€1'08S 19Y'88€E 6Y5°16€
9/€'v9l £EV'LGL £60'€0Z 662081 92€£'SkT 98526 zie'l1e 285'55€ RSN £YS'SLE
6.1'Se 996'05 510294 G815z €82°1€ €0E'6LL 69ECY 892'%6 169'2S 0LY'€0}
0/2'992'c 296'059'L 8/€'965°) L0L'€52"L vov'e8y'L 815'169'y G9S'TLL'E L9Y'8EL'T 92Y'SHE'C §G2'18L'C
1G1'69% 865'6vY 697'55S 269'Sty 185°205 1€€°109 1€S'/LSG 662'77L 962'%59 LEEvLL
206'22 162'L2 2€9'92 §29'ee G/8'8L 687'2Z 598'2Z 106'vE LL¥'8€E #00'8€
099'052 199'952 666'£92 Yrv'8.2 057'962 816'€0€E L¥9'S0€ 022'02€ £€8'86€ 016'SEE
112'50S 159'89% 61'92¢ 910'00% 288'06€ GES'06€E G/9'99¢ 125'65€ 2LY'YSE 6€£8'28€

= e . = = = = 190'0€5°L 989'v01'2 G9E'¥60'2
€2L'2€2 v11'66C 109'v62 L1562 955°12¢ 0v9'9/2 ¥86'962 GBL'ELE zeL'oze =
G/1'618'Y 202209y zL8'1E5'Y 926's2L'y ZeL'LL0'S 718'€02'S TEV'BIE'S 1692296 208'918'S BY7'8EL'D
¥66'80Y'9 $  98CPYE'9$  LG6'66V'9$  9LL'VES'9 $  L/2¥S6'9S  BYE'YB9'9 $  9ES'OV9'9 §  vZ6'0L8'9 $  Z8L'E¥8'9$  L26'v96'9 $

6002 0102 1102 [4104 €10¢ 7102 4 9102 1102 8102

Jea\ [eoslH

(Bununoooe Jo siseq [enidoe payipow)
SIBOA [BOSI4 UD] )Se

SpUN4 [BJUSLLLIBAQY) JO SBoUB|eg pun4 ui sabuey)

SjybioH POOMUOH0D
-LYVHO :SANIYL TYIONVNIS

aoueleg pun4 Buipug
aoueleg pun4 Bujuuibeg

sainyipuadxa |ejidesuoN
Jo abejuasiad e se 891n8s 1gaQ
saoueleq puny ul 8bueyd JoN
wayl [e1oads
way [e1ads aiojeq seoueleq puny ul 8bueyo jaN
(sasn) saa1nog Buioueul Jayi0 [eJo L
sjessy [ejdeD jo ales
puog SNUBASY WO SPaad0Id
soseaT [e)ide) wolj spasooid
uonnquiuoY [e}de) pury-uj
N0 SIBYSUBL|
ul sJgjsues |
(S3SN) S30UNOS ONIONYNIH ¥IHLO
saln)ipuadx3 JOAO senuaAay Jo (Aousioyaq)ssaox]

sainyipuadx3 [BJ0 |
shenQ ended
|ejuawulanobisiu|
sabieyo [eosy pue sala)u|
[ediouud
80Ineg 1q8d
JuawdojaAa( 2IWOU0dT] puUB AJUnNWWoD
sjuswanoidw| a1gnd pue shkemybiH
Apjes olgnd
JUBLUUIBAOY) [BIBUSD)
aun)
SIANLIANIdX3

SONuaAdY [ejo |
SNOBUE||9ISIN
sBuiuwe3 yuawysaau|
SaIN)Io0 pue saul4
$90IMBS Joj sabiey)
. UO199]|0D) Jea A Juauny - sea4 joedw|
|eyuawulanobiaiu|
S}luLad pue Sasuad
wooy juaisues |
SOXe| aslyouel
Nal|-ul-234 S|OIYBA JOJON
xe] asn ABisug
so94 Aousbiow3 | |6-3
soxe] sales
soxe] Apadoid
SIANNIATY

-74 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1sca

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



('81.0Z Ad Paje|nojeoal ejep Jeak Jold) [eroawwo) - ,Sanje JoyIe, Passessy Ul papnjoul pue ,pajewnss, si saxe} Auadoid woyy ydwaxa 900 st 1eys Auadoid (1)

‘play aue sbuueay pue pale|oap sI asealoul Xe} ssejun Jeak Joud se anuanal awes pjalh o) abueyo sajel ‘Ajlenuue passesseal si Aunod auy) ul Ausdoid 810N
uoissiwwo) xe| ajejs yeyn ‘uojipny Auno) s ‘uswpedaq soueuld syybieH PoOMUOH0)) :89IN0g

-75-

COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

%8602°0 %019 /28'800°'2¢L'e  80L'€L6'0¥8'L  000°000°09) GEG'786'LCL'S 168°626'9€0°) ¥89'250°160'7 800¢ 600¢
%66€¢ 0 %C'L9 L'pL0'€€LT  0L6°087'G6S'L  000°000°0%h 12€'655'89Y'Y 8812¥0'€26 €EL'ELSGHSe 6002 010¢
%L152°0 %609 101'618°2€9C  €GL'06L'8SS'L  000°000°GE} ¥G2'600°LEEY 0.7'%9€'898 v8LYY9T9v'e 010¢ L10¢e
%985¢'0 %119 82G'600'986C  ¢L'€€L'GIS’L  000'000°0€) 00L2hL1EC Y 960081 798 ¥09°C96'99€ € 1102 cloe
%¥S9¢'0 %Y'1L9 967°/€5'855C  ¢66'996'7'L  000'000°GEL 822706891y 208'66.'068 9Y'v0L'LL2'E 2Lz €10¢
%22SC0 %919 191°088'€/9'  202'9/¢'/2S'L  000°000°0%) 89€'9G 1L L¥E'Y L¥2'60C'LY6 12)'1¥6'€6E'E €102 r10C
%98€C°0 %19 Lv6'/8Y'808°C  ¢¢G088'G€9'L  000°000°6Y) 697'89€'€65 Y 0Zv'8.0°856 6v0'062'GE9'E 710¢ GL0C
%6€2C 0 %S°L9 8/8'0ce'LL0'€  066'6S¥'6¢L'L  000°000'6S) 898°082'G06'Y 9vy'9€5'290°) zer'rveers’e G102 910¢
%¥90¢°0 %C'C9 186°06LC)€E 180°268'8€8°L  000°000°€L} 890'82972€'G 01106182} 8G6°2E1'980'Y 910¢ 1102
%8610 %619 29.TIG'G8y'e  €8C'6LG'€96'L  000'000'€8L $  S¥0'CE0'TEQ'S 098'G59'892"1 G81'9/€'€9EY 1102 810¢

ajey passassy Alin4 anje/ a|gexe] uondwax3 (1) Auadoud [eJ0L (1) |erosswiwon [enuapIsay ICENN 0¢ aunp

palg 9% SE anjep passassy lejuapisey  jdwax3-xe] %001 JusLssassy papu3

lejol a|qexe| passassy [ejol ssa7 s Xe] Jea [eosiq
d|qexe L AL¥3d0¥d 40 .3aNTVA LINAIVIN. G3SSISSY

SIE9\ [BOSI4 UB] JSET
Kpadoid a|qexe] jo anjeA [enjoy pajewnsy pue anjep passassy
sjybieH poomuopo)
G-LYVHO ‘ALIOVdYD INNIAIY

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

‘frepunog s,A110 8y Jo %8 Ajgjewixoidde sdepiano jousiq Aouensasuo)) Jajep As)ieA ueplor (G)
‘Ksepunoq A}12 ay} Jo %0, Aljewixoidde sdepiano ealy 99IAI8S UONRSI0RY B Syied SiyblaH poomuoyo) (4)
9%g Bulurewa) ay) sanas JoLISIg ueqingng 1S ‘siybioH poomuono) Jo %86 Alerewixoidde sanias Jou)sIg Jamas, Juswianoidw| poomuono) (g)
suoijesado apimAjunod [esauab pue pooj4 ‘Uonealday ‘YifeaH sapnjoul - Ajuno) axeT Jjes (z)
"pled a1e Aay) se panes Buiaq ale spuoq uonebijqQ [eseuas) pajoA wolj1gad PIO ‘6002 ‘L AINF 19LSIQ [00YdS SUOAUBY 0} JOLSI( [00YDS UBPIOL WOJ) PUOHISUBL] - JouIsIq [00y9S 8007 (1)

‘play aue sbuueay pue paejoap S asealoul xe) ssajun Jeak Joud se anuanal swes pjalk o} abueyd sajel ‘Ajjenuue passasseal si Aunod sy} ul Auadoid 810N
uosialg xe] Apadold - uoissiwwo) Xe] djels ey :89inog

%¥8€0°0 %0600 %E6L00  %9820°0 %2000 %Z6v00  %LELLO %0519°0 5 %8602°0 e %86020 8002  600C
%00%0°0 %E20L0 %6100  %00¥0°0 %5200°0 %P9500  %8.220 %007L'0  %08/6°0  |%66EZ0 B %66€20 6002  0L0Z
%0170°0 %8501°0 %62200  %LZ00 %05000 %E8500  %E6SZ0 %0ZSL'0  %0VS90  |%LISZ0 - %LLSZ0  0L0Z  1L0Z
%00 %1210 %.£200  %9EY00 %2500°0 %0900 %9692°0 %6L9L'0  %9YS90  [%98520 - %9860 L0z  2loZ
%EYY0'0 %E0Z) 0 %Pre00  %SSP0°0 %1200°0 %.2900  %E6/Z0 %L0EL0  %LLLLO  |%KG9Z0 & %PS90  ZloZ €102
%200 %5810 %9€200  %9r¥00 %1200°0 %GGL00  %08LE0 %G60L'0  %9L0L0  |%ZZsz0 = %250 EL0Z  ¥L0Z
%66€0°0 %ESTL0 %9200  %ZZv00 %0200°0 %GLL00  %9E0E0 %6600  %Z/890  |%98€Z0 = %9860  ¥l0Z  GLOZ
%0000 %8610 %SGL200  %S0v0°0 %6000 %E890'0  %LESZ0 %29800 %6690  |%6EZZ0 @ %6E220  GLOZ 9102
%2L€0°0 %LL110 %66L00 %0000 %8100°0 %6£90'0  %LLEZ0 %P9.00  %EIWI0  |%¥90Z0 - %P90Z0  9L0Z  LL0Z
%000%°0 %5901 0 %68L00 %0000 %2000 %S0900  %L¥20 %8L900  %BEY90  |%I86L0 2 %L86L0  LL0Z  8L0Z

(G)1omsig  (p) eaay domas  (g) 10u1sIq usia pusia Keigrr (g) (epmAunod) (1)(igeq pio) (1) 10msia yang | someg dley  Jesp (Qgaunp
>ocmew=oo uoneslosy 9 JOM3G, >u=m>._wmcoo jusuwisleqy bc:oo bc:oo ouisig |100Yy2g ejo] 19eQ alseg Xel papu3z
Islep\ Siled mEm_wI EwEo>an_ I21ep\ Q_scwo_z »w__m> a)eT Jles 9)eT Jles 100Yydg m:o>cmo uoneniqo les )\
>w__m> uepiop poomuonod poomuojo) yein [eaus) o8xyeTles yinos uepior |elauas) easi4

sajey buiddepang 8102

SIE9A [BISI4 U] ]S
sjuswuianog) Buiddepang pue Joaig
sajey xe] Auadoid
sjybiaH poomuoyon
9-LYVHO "ALIOYdYO INNIATY

-76 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

pauIquog pialyS anjg/ssoiganig 8ousbay/NSoaY «
Jainseal] Ajunog exeT jjes :82in0g

86°0ELTLE'E §  OneA passassy sjqexeL KD [ejoL

825'600'985C $
%.8°CL 9€8°0€.'8GE
%¢9°0 6 199'€Y6'GlL
%090 0l 009'686'GL
%000 8 ovL'ovL'LL
%080 9 0Ll‘0z2'0C
%820 l 0£9°122'0C
%91} g 069'6£6'62
%hL 14 000'892'.€
%06°L € 668°'/€ 16
%.8'C ¢ 005'82€'vL $
%L0°E L 000'GE8‘.L

anjep yuey anep
passassy passassy
[ej0] jo s|qexe Z10¢
abejuaoiad
€102 Ad

%8081 G62'/86'865
Awmo_.tov WO MI0)sIBAQ
%650 0l 00'09%'61 siauped A yed
%89°0 6 01£'0¥9'2Z O77'| swied 4Sr
%260 8 028°198°0¢ (ease buiddoyg) *077 “Auedwo) |jeqdwe) sswer
%80°L L GG6'/¥8'SE (poomuoyod My) 0711 ‘sluswipedy 84 ejues
%Pl 9 068'219'L€ sjuewedy puejybiy sjoeuuld
%0€"| g 006'960'Cy (eaue Buiddoyg) 09 juswiseAu] sjaino4
%65l ¥ 001'699'2S plelysanig/ssoinan|g sousbay / -ou| ‘Ailesy NSOEY
5 000'69€'SS JPIOH 8L BU0ISIBuI0)
%P0y Z 009'648'€E} (18yua) poomuono)) || LIFYOH
%90°G | 00£'695'29) $ (sa0u0) 483ua) 8jesodio) (I PIO
anjep yuey anjea Jokedxe |
9|qexe | passassy
[ejo] J0 a|qexe] /102
abejusolag
810Z Ad

0By SIeaA Al puB JBaA Juaun)
siokedxe] Auadoid [ediouud

sybiaH poomuoypon

L-18VHD ‘ALIOVdYO INNIATY

-77 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

UOISSILIWIOY XB | SjelS Yeln ‘Joypny Ajuno) 1S ‘Jualupedaq 8ouBul- S)yBiaH POOMUO}0Y) ;30105

86vCI1'9 %860¢0 %019 12880021 %566 192'665'9 865792 %G'496 62,709 698059 600¢
LIB'ETY9 %66€¢ 0 %C 19 WPL0CELT %696 2161679 VLL'GET %€ 96 0Plolz9  8L¥'2Ts 0102
ALY %L15¢0 %6'09 1016182697  %E'66 180669 GLY'00C %€ 96 21989 €9/819°9 L10¢C
AN %9852 0 %19 8256009857  %E'66 8Gv'7€9'9 18L'€1T %} 96 119'02¥'9 78'189'9 414
TN AY %¥S9C 0 %519 967'/€9'995C %166 bLypLL9 621091 %L 96 6Y€ 7559 1928119 4114
870'59¢'9 %CCSC 0 %819 191'088°€L9C %86 0981299 £09°8}1 %L 96 £¥2'695'9 192'8LL°9 v10¢
968681’ %98€C 0 %Y'19 LY6'/87'808C  %L'86 99'629'9 88995 %6'L6 9/6'895°9 829°04L9 Gl0¢
G9v'009°9 %6€¢C 0 %29 8/8'02€'LH0C %966 G29'/6L'9 £86'G0} %086 ATAL R A T4 910¢
¥5€'8v9'9 %¥90¢ 0 %L 9 186'06LTIEE %666 0/6'€/8'9 6Y€'9C) %086 V2T L9 215'€88'9 L10¢
761'05L98 %8610 %G9 29L715'98Y'C  %E66 £19798'9 699 769 %6 L6 629,98 Tve'16'9$ 810¢
ajey Xe| ajey anje/\ 1oxiey anje)\ o|qexe, fe7j0 pojoslo)  YAXELUIPOYSSE)  AASTJ0  pejoslo)  JesA[easl{ (g aunp
165 0} pasn J08ll]  Possassy Jo % Passassy obejusolad  jJunowy  sieajjuenbasqng  obejusosad  junowy 10} kra papu3
jobpng [euibll) ~ [B10]  9|qexe) passessy  pue-leaA[el0L  &]eq O} Suons|o) [BloL Ul SUO108)I00) fha7ayjo oA [esly  Xe[[elo]  Jeaj [eosld

SIeaA [B9SI4 U3 1seT

Juenbuiaq |ejo)

SU01}03[[07) pue saiAa Xe | Auadoid

sjybiaH poomuoy0)

8-14VHD ‘ALIQVdYO INNIAFY

SUf} UiLhim pa}as]0]

-78 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS
STATISTICAL SECTION

snsusD S ‘espiwWIoD uojeindod ejels yein (z)
V1 1JeyD uo pasojosip SI swooul [euosiad (1)

saiAoe adA)-ssauisng ou sey A0 8y :8joN

6E'€e lGe'Ge %9900 686928 - - G86'928 - 600¢
8.8l L0¥'GE %S00 868'%99 - - 868799 - B 0102
86'8¢ EEY'EE %800 9/9'GG6 . & 9/9'G56 g 1102
ov'1e 890v€ %1900 06062 - . 060'62. d ¢l0¢e
65°€E L10'vE %.600 €05'chLl - - €0G°TrLl - €10¢
€sve LL0vE %5900 LIE'¥E . g LIE'VER - v10¢
Ge Loy 991 'Y€ %2911 1€9°29L°Gl 995'829'Y1 . G90'¥EL') . G10¢C
989y EvEVE %9171 PYE9vE'Gl 6L'L2S YL - 266818 - 910¢
¢v'6€9 G8T'vE %1191 £6€'C26'LC 0€2TCL'LL . €21'002'y - L10¢
GG'209 966€€ %Y8Y°1 28€'%59°0C 018CLZ°LL $ i $ cC.518ee S i $ 810¢

SaNIANOY [EJUBLLLIBADS)

eudenied  (g)uonendoq () swioou 198@ spuog spuog Sosea spuog 0¢ aunp
19eQ paje|nojen leuosiad Buipueising aNuUsAdY  JUBWSSaSSY [enden uonebigo papu3
99))IWwWo) a)e)s  Jo abejusoied |ejo) Xe] sses [eioadg [ejouss)  JeaA [2osid

SIea\ [easi ua] jse
adA| Aq1gaq BuipueisinQ Jo soney
slybiaH poomuopo?)
6-L¥VHO ‘ALIOVdVYD 1830 -

-79-

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

1 HBYD UO S80nsneIS 21Wouod3 pue olydesBowaq Jo 8inpayds ay) Uo punoj aq ued ejep uonendod (v

‘ejep anjea Auadoud Joj G Weyd uo Auadoid ajgexe] Jo anjeA [enjoy pajews3 au) pue anjeA pessassy Jo 8|npayos ay) 88g
sjuswAed ediouud soinias Jqap uonebijqo [eseuab Joj pajoL)sal Junowe ay) si Siy|

swnjwaid pue sjunodsip aouenssi [eulblo Jo Jau ‘saniAloe adA}-ssauisng pue [ejuswulanob y1oq Jo 1gep papuoq [eiausb ay) sisiy] (]

(
(
(
(

£
¢

)
)
)
)

Sjuswaje)s [eloueUly 8y} 0} S8J0U BU} Ul punoj aq ued jqap Buipuejsino s,A)0 ayy Buipsebal sjiejeq 810N

- - - - 6002
. - . " 0102
- . 5 - 1102
- - . = 2102
- - - - €102
- - - - 102
- - . - Gl0Z
- . . . 9102
" - = ® 102
. % - . $ : $ $ 8102
(¥) ended (€) Auadoud lejo) (z) spun4 8oin8S (1) spuog 0g aunp
Jad jo anep J08Q U 8|qe|ieAy uonebiiqo papu3
o|gexe] |enjoy Sjunowy :Sse7 |eJauss) Jeg A |edsiq
pajewns3 9102
Jo abejusdiad

SIBAA [BOSI4 UB] JSeT
BuipuejsinQ 198Q papuog |BIauax) Jo soney
sybiaH poomuopo)
01-1¥VHD ‘ALIOVdYO 1830

-80 -

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

‘uawuianob Buiddepisno yoes Jo Jgap ay) Buikedal Joj ajqisuodsal a10ja18y) pue ‘Juapisal e si Jokedxe) Aions

Jey) Ajdwi Jou saop SIy} ‘JOASMOH 'JUNCJ2E Ojul UdYe) aq pinoys siakedxe) Aladoud ayj Aq suloq usping Jqap aujus sy} jgep
wua)-Buo Aedas pue anssi o) Ayjige sjuswuianob ay) Buuspisuod uaym ey} seziubooas ssa20id siy| sjybieH poomuo}o) Jo
s1akedxe) Auadoid ay) Aq suloq si ey} sjuawiulanob Buiddejsano asou) Jo 1qap Buipue)sino au} Jo uoiiod dyj Sajew)se 9|NPayYs SIY |

‘A0 8y Jo salpunoq o1ydelBoab yim ‘Ued ul jses) Je ‘apioulod Jey) asouy} ale sjuswuianob buiddepanQ :8joN

"y4YD SaNNua Jayjo pue ‘/ |0z o} Loday [eioueul [enuuy aaisusyaidwo) - Ajuno) axe Jles :$e0Inog

07.'8.6'66 $ 069'6/90LL'L $ Jgap Buiddepiano pue joaup [ejo
8€'%59'0C %0000} Z8E'¥59°0¢C 1g8p Joaup A9
85€'%2E'6. 80€'520060° Jaep Ayianoe [eyuswuienob buiddepano ‘ejoigng
GGY'68Y %S0 80€°020'¢cee Jousig Aouensasuo) Jsyep AsjieA uepior
00¥'€92'¢ %0086 000°0€€’e BalY S0IAISS UOIESI09Y B Siied SiybiaH poomuono)

- %61 'SP - jouIsIq ,JomMag, JusLaAodw| POOMUO)0D)

= %89G o Jousig oynbsop AsjjeA 8xe jles yinog
Z76'680'8 %98'¢ 000619602 Areiqr g [essuag - unod axe Jles
80%'8¥5 6Y %8081 000°066'€.LC Jousiq |00yog suoAued
1G9'/6Y'6 %Y 8l 000°0£G°LS (1g8p pio) Joujsiq (ooyos uepiop
96v'GEY'8 $ %98'¢€ 000006812 $ Jousiqg Aoueasasuo) Jajep yein [eus)
S1ybIsH poomuoy09) 3|qeoiddy BuipuejsinQ Jun Juswulanos) buiddepang

0} 9|qeoyddy abejusdied 198Q

junowy pejewns3 810¢

810 ‘0€ aunr jo sy
198Q SelIAnoY [ejuawulanos) BuiddepanQ pue j0aiiQq
sjybioH poomuopo)
L1-L8VHO ‘ALIOVdYO 1830

-81-

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

Sjoujsip 2IAIRS [e1oads Jayjo Aq papinoid sle S30INISS JOMAS pue Jajem AjuaLng
SJUSLUBJE]S [eIoUBUY BU) 0} SBJ0U BU} Ul punoj aq ued Jqap Buipuelsino s Ao sy Buipseb sjielaq Bj0N

£09'85v'L6€ §

(AT

072'089'G6E §

917'160'82¢ $

8608922 §

60G'260'96€ §  L/G'LME'6CE $  69Y'Z€0'99€ $  SvT'S6Y'SeE §  ¥OSu89BlY ¢

- 000024} 000'50L'E} 000'669'9} 000'5€2'9}

2 000°0LL'1 000'50L'} 000'G69'9} 000'G€Z'9}

Juswyeda( soueul{ :20n0S
uiBseyy 3g8q [ebe]

Jlwry 0} sjeqealiddy 1gaq JoN [ej0L
1gaQ UoRea|qQ [eIBUSY

10 JuswAeday Joj apIsy oS Junowy $s87

spuog uonebijqQ [e1ausg

Jwry 0} 8jqeaiiddy jgaq
£09'8¢1'26¢ 927'¥82'9%E 012'089'56E 914'160'32¢ 86089728 609'260'9€€ 11518648 697'2vL'64€ SITOEL Ty 99765y (8njen ysep Jie4 ajqeuosea. J0 %8) Y igeq
§69796'296'S  12€'9SS'02EYS  ¥S2'B00'96L'YS  00LThM'L0LYS  8CZ'OS'EE0VS  89E'9SL'LOZYS  11.'692'/8C'¥S  998'08L'9v.'%S  890'929'15H'SS  GvO'ZEO'6RY'S § anjep yse) Jie4 8jqeuoseay

:UoljeN[eA passassy

8007 6002 0102 1107 710¢ £10¢ 7102 5102 90z 1100
Sleg ) Xe|
suonejnoje uibiely geq [eba
%0000 %0000 %0000 %0000 %0000 %0000 %S0 %609 %9807 %veLS Jwir 1g8q jo abejusaied e se
Jwiry 8y 0} 8|qeijddy 1gaq JoN ejoL
€09'9ey'/66 $  9ev'vBTOve §  O0p.089'SEE §  9ip'L60'8ZE §  8E€'089'72€ §  60S'760'9EE $  L.G'1IZ'6CE §  6OV/E0'99E §  Shz'S6v'SeE §  p9SU89Bly  § uibiey 1gaq febe
. s . . . - 000'0LL'g} 000'502'¢} 000'5£9'9} 00029} Jwr] o) ajqeoyiddy 1a8q 1eN [ejoL

£09'867'26¢ 927'782'9%¢ 0v2'089'8¢ 91°160'82¢ 86£'089'22¢ 605260'9£€ 115186208 699'2rL'6.8 SH0ELTY  $957E6'SEY Jwr [BUORNISUOD 1G8Q %8 [loL

10661.'86) AT 0.£'078°29) 8025049} 6910719} 662'90'89) 892°06%'}L) 662'1/9'68) 2159090 282'196'L1C (anjeA useD 1124 %) Jajep) ‘Jameg
J0e'612°86) §  Elzerl'ell §  0LL'0v8'29) §  80L'GH0'M9L §  6OOVE'9L §  GSZT'O0'9L §  8806Y'LL §  GEZ'L.8'68L $  €21'S90'90z § 78196l § (enjeA yse) Jie4 %p) [eseueg
Jwr] [BUOAMISUOY 108

600 0102 1102 2100 £102 ¥10¢ 5107 9,02 1102 810z

SIesA [easl4

802 '0€ aunp
uoneuoju| uibiey 19eq [eba
sjybiaH poomuoyo)
Cl-1¥YHO 'ALIOVdYO 183d

-82 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1sca

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

WnIWaid puog paziJowe Jo Jau - 891A18S 198Q

. . - - 600¢

i - - - 01L0¢

- - - - 110

- - - - ¢l0¢

. , . . €10¢

- - - - ¥10¢
.66 Ovy'ees - CEVBLE'S GL0¢c
6E'6 92.L'€€s 00069 169°'229'G 9102
£9'9 92.'925 000'0G€ 08'918'G L10¢
vy'G 0bL'8c. § 00000 $  6VPBELD § 810¢
abelanon B ledioulld Sanuanay Iea

» 90INBS 198( Xe] Sales [eosi4

Spuog anuaAdy Xe| Sojes

810¢ "0¢ aunr

abelano?) anuanay-pabpald
S)ybiaH poomuoyo)
€1-14VHO -ALIQVdVD 1830

-83-

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS
STATISTICAL SECTION

Ad aunr - saisiels Joge Jo neaing (g)
(1ous1g suokue) ul jooyds Aue Buipusjje snsuso Juspnis HAD 0} ‘SNSUS2 [00YdS HMD Woyy pabueyd Junod 9| A4) Snsua) Jausiq (00yas (z)
S9JeWNSa SNSUa) SN ‘eaniwwo) uone|ndod 8jels yein (1)

-84 -

%6°G 88G'G Syl 8626521 12966 « 089€ 1GEGE 6002
%L olY's Syl 8556821 FAAS 06°9€ LOY'GE 0102
%9, eeL's 9yl 6/8'991' 206'E 00°2€ EEY'ee 1102
%09 Sv8'y oYl 88z'cyL’L 655'CE 0L'L€ 890'€ AN
%0°G 205y 9l 220'LLL') 109'VE 0Z'L€ LL0'VE €102
%G'E 965y 9vl 689'v/2') L'l 0€'L€ L10'VE 102
%E'E 059'Y 9yl 116°9G€"} LLL'6E b€ 991 v€ G102
%EE 190'y 9l 9Lp'1Ze') LLY'8E 0S'L€ EVE'YE 9102
%€ 266°€ 9l 8€2°09¢'} 689'6€ 09'L€ G8Z'¥E 1102
%€ 802"y 9yl 0/L'16E'L § 6€6'0F $ 0LLE 966'€€ 8102
() ajey (¢)wawioiug  (g) bujooyos (000, w)  (g'))dwoou;  (}) 8by (1) uogeindod  Jesp
EoE>o_aEmcD |00YdS jewlo Jo awodu| E_amo lad uelipa\ paje|noe)n |edsi4
1n .On_m OJI9N ¢ SIea A m>< |euosiad 99JJIlwoY ale1s
uoneanp3

SIeaA [BOSI4 U] 1seT
SolIsiiels 21wouod3 pue dydesbowaq
siybiaH poomuoyo)
71-1dVHO “OINONOO3 ANV JIHdVYO0W3A

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

000'SZ - 000°E}

000°0€ - 00081

ejep aafkojdwa - Jakojdwa urejulew jou seop sjybioH POOMUO}0D
SB0IAJSS B2UOJHOA JO Juswedaq yejn :82nos

Ao i siekoidw3 papodey (I

%C6'€E 187'8 - 006 %L 62 12L'6- 08"y siefojdw3 [edioutd us] do|

%880 0l 6¥2-001 S91B|00SSY pue uos|alad pue aduld

%26'€ 4 666-005 "2U| WO)H203SISA0

%880 0l 672-001 poo4 sueg

%880 9 6v2-004 yur 4eap)

%880 0l 6v2-004 dio) uawaseuey 03V %690 6v2-004 $90INIBS U)eaH (lemdn (1]}
%690 6v2-001 SO|UOJ}OB|F UOS|IM 0l
%690 6v2-001 suoynjos Buiyels eisin 0l
%690 6v2-004 au| [agoN ouAg 0L
%690 6v2-001 SBOIAISS UjesH Jausa) 0b
%690 6v2-001 swayshg X3dv 04
%690 6v2-004 abeboy [euoneN Ajunosg 0L
%690 672-001 ou| |ojuodIB}SEIN 0L

%880 (]} 6v2-004 (poo4 syyws) ou| eajesadoog dnoig Jabosy %690 6v2-004 (poo syjws) ou| aAjesadoo) dnoig) Jabouy 0l

%96’ 9 66705C uojesodio) Jobie %690 6v2-001 uojesodio joble | 04

%880 0L 6v2-004 ou| auejineN %690 6v2-001 ouj aulejiAeN 04

%880 04 6v2-004 (se9 JoAnq wiayl) Ty 13 O | Suonsinboy ¥ %690 6v2-001 (se JaAy Wey) v 13 OT7 | SUOHSINDIY ¥ 0L

%880 0l 6v2-004 ou| SN jodeq SWoH 8y | %690 6v2-004 au] ySN jodaq BWoH ay | 0L

%880 0L 6v2-001 ou] ‘Awouosse9 %690 6v2-004 ou| ‘Awouoyse9 0L

%880 04 6v2-001 (s Aapye uoayihey) 9717 julodediod %690 6v2-001 (sAS AapieQ uosykey) 971 jutodadiog 0L

%880 04 6v2-001 (M9 uidnaiod) ou| Aeung uokue) %690 6v2-001 (119 suidnaiog) ouj Areuiing uokued 0l

%880 0L 6v2-004 By B0IAIBG UOJBRIoBY 3 SHied S}ybIaH POOMUOHOD %690 62001 BJY 808G UO[E8I08Y B SHed SjubieH poomuonoy 0b
%690 6677052 (soueul4 [e1008) 1405 9

%880 0l 6v2-001 ((oul swaysAsnny uoisnd) ¥siq ues) [eybiq usisap %ES'} 667-052 ((‘ou) swaysAspniy uoisnd) ¥sig ues) [enbiq wejsom 9

%26'C ¥ 666-005 4ein 4o plelygen|g ssoipanig aouabiay %ES' 667052 Ueln 40 pielysenig ssoiDanig aouabay 9

%880 04 672-00) ou| Juswabeueyy 8oedg eix3 %ES L 667052 ou| juewabeueyy 90eds exx3 9

%26'€ 4 666-005 Joulsiq |00yag suokue) %S0'€ 666-005 1ousiq [00yog suokued €
%50°€ 666-00S ou| ‘aunjonusu| £

%¥8'L ) 66610004 uojesodio) skemury anjg jor %19 6661-0001 uojesodio) skemuly anig jor ’

wawhodwg  Nuey saafojdw3 Jokojdw3 Juawlodw3 saafojdw3 Jafodw3 ey
[ejo] Jo lejo] Jo
abejuaniay obejuaoiad
6002 810¢

0By S1e9A BUIN PUB JEaA Juaun)
saupunog Ay9 ul siekojdw3 jediould
sjybloH poomuoyo)
GL-1¥VHO “JINONOO3 ANV JIHdVHOOW3a

-85 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

Juswedap JaBpng / soueul4 A9 :80in0g

2099 2699 99°0. 0L'EL 6¢G. 109/ G9'6. 07’18 9’16 87’16 [ejoL
09y Gl'e 00y ey ve'y JARY ¥8'G 709 069 099 Juswdojenag 1wouod3 § Aunuwwo)
00¢C 00 0y 00y 69y a9y 69y 69y 00l 004 30UBUBUIR
sj19a.1s pue skemybiH
00¢C 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ Juswisdiojug 8oUBUIPIO
6.8 GL'8 0001 0¢0l 901} Wil Wil Wil Wil A UIOMS-UON
00°¢E 0G'%¢ A A 069¢ 06°9¢ 06'8¢ 09°6¢ 09'6¢ 09°6€ SIB0IYQ UIOMS
801104
Kapes aand
g ) LGl 119l 7991 €9l 0921 6Ll 008} 0081 JusWUIBAOS) [BIBUSS)
uonoun4
6002 0102 1102 ¢l0e £10¢ 710¢ Gloe 9102 L10¢ 810¢

0€ aunr Jo se saakodui3 Jusieainb3 awi-n4

SIBaA [B9SI4 UA] 1SET
uonoun4 Aq seakojdw3 juajeainb3 awi-{n4
s)ybleH poomuoyon
91-1dYHO ‘NOILYWHOANI ONILYY3dO

-86 -

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

9|qe|eA. J0U,,
sjualpedap A9 snouey :22in0g

- - 8'e50'7 18Y'962'¢ r8'682C r8'she we'LesT 992'6€6°C 908796 12€'200¢ 80eds 2010 Jo 3bejoo} aienbs (ejo L
- - . 000°2€2 - 000°05} 005°c€ 00095} 0v5°€C G15'6¢ 80eds 2010 mau Jo abejoo) aienbg
" - Btl') 61’} 0L 8T’} 089') £0v'l 68¢'} 926') suogoadsuy Buipyng jo Jequiny
8¢ 68 e 8¢ 80 98 9€s 414 169 169 panss| sjwsad bupjing
1474 ¥S) €9l 181 sl 08} 61 e 861 80C panss| $8su8Dl| $SaUISNQ MBU JO JaquinN
W' Sev'l 98¢’ 692’ 162') lev'h 5t'l 652 208"} v9t'l pamaual S9sU8Jl| $SaUISNg JO JaqUINN
JusLudojanaq 2Iwou093 pue Aunwwos)
AR 862'GLC 6v52S 19€'LLYy SSLIYS 082'9¢C G196 L6€'51L ) 005'€82 paja|duwod Aejiano jo 138} asenbg
L6759 Z 62€250') G98'L Iy 699'069'} 01€'65L ® @ @ = paijdde ayweioa) / (eas Aunis jo 108} aienbg
- Gee'65)'1 687'159 0509y 005955 059'2¢2 . 006°864 06082 009'62.'} pajjdde (eas diyo jo 03} asenbg
L1 6Cv 1714 ({144 [X44 i e [439 14 00¢ Pasojo syuuad UOeARIXa Panss! O JaGINN
SYIOM Jllgnd
166'} 182°¢ £98C 025 {7444 1T 965C £r8'l 180° 6L S][e3 [ealpaLL Jo JaquinN
98 £26 696 96 188 8 602 1€9 €9 09 $1[9 814 JO JoquINN
A4
- - 801 6 L2l 8l Ll 9 %2l (144 panss| Suofeyd U0Re|oIA BOUBUIPIQ
- - 881’} 79¢') gL'} iy 29¢' €6 58 098 80INISS J0} S|[20 PONJOAUI [BWILY
JUBIB2I0JUT BOUBUIPIO
saun asuodsal sjea | Auoud ‘BAy-4usyson1s
Ly (387 (1727 8 60 18Y 6Ly %Y 0Ly sawy asuodsa sifea | Aol *Bay-0dHO
44 Gel 108 80¢ x4 9l 991 8Ll 891 Sisalie |n 40 J8quinN-0dHO
££6 G10'} 02} 4 a8l 82z} £6e'} w0z’ 8Gt') SisaLe J0 JBQUINN-OdHD
%8S %EL . %02 %EE %6¢ %6¢ %1€ sejey 8oueles|y
- - 996 666 020° €86 4Ap oKy 0LV} 10° adey 9 syay spoyeA ‘Ausosen ‘AiejBing ‘nessy
%26 %06 2 %C8 %9L %9 %0L %59 sejey soueses|
" - 4] 0¢ 9 € 14 8¢ 1§ 144 suodeapym sjjenssy ‘A1aqqoy pauuy ‘apioioH
0502C 098°¢Z € 6.€'6C v19'6e 999'12 676'2C 01Z'8h £9v'8l 190’6} 80IAIBS 10} S|e9 [eJ01-OdHO
:801j0d
fiojes dland
6002 0102 }102 414 €102 1414 G102 9102 1102 810C
129k [BoSI4
SIBA U3 Jse
uonoun4 Aq siojeaipu| Buelsdo
s)ybiaH poomuoyo)

L1-14YHO ‘NOILYIWHOINI ONILYH3dO

-87-

| Year Ended June 30, 2018

1SCa

inancial Report — F

Comprehensive Annual F



COTTONWOOD HEIGHTS

STATISTICAL SECTION
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